_ PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT

AUTHORITY: Titie 10 USC Sectien 301; Titke 5 USC Section 2051; £.0. 5357 dated Novarsbe: 22, 1643 /SSW.
PAINCIPAL PURPOSE: To provide commanders and Lw antorcamant officals with meas by which irfermeti: ey ba scturany identibed.
ROUTINE USES: Yeur saciel 3curtly Rumber s exet a1 an addirionalsiramate mears of evification 16 faciktate g and etoweal.
DISTLDSUAE: Dischasure of your social seculity tembe: i velunlay.
1. LOCATION 12 TATE (YYTYMMOD) {3 T Hn. FILE NUMBEF
DSJA, DAMSTADT, GERMANY 2004/05/ l" 1533

UAST NAME, FIRST NAME, MIDDLE NAME 5. SSN . ! 7. GRADEISTATUS

. 10N OR ADDRESS
A/3020d MILITARY INTELLIGENCE BATTALION, HEIDELBERG, GERMANY AP0 AE 09102

I arrived in Kuwait on 12 February 2003 and was assigned to the targeting celi in the Intelligence Fusion Center at Camp Victory.
This was a Coalition operation and we were co i r1 and Stability Operations. Sometime in January, | was seat
Abu Ghraib to interrogate a { had developed a linked diagram on this GENERAL who had over

100 members I was working the targeting folder for the pencral knew more about him than most people. 1 was scnt by
P Lo order to verify or vali link diagram | had created. 1 was (o possibly
ore targets from this interview. When [ arrived at Abu Ghraib, | #5ked to speak to the GENERAL. They tried to Aind

the GENERAL because they did not know where he was. Some interrogators told me, do pot know who they were (2 SFC about
5’9, balding light brown bair, in his mid 40's, and possibly wore glasses.) that 1 could not interrogate the GENERAL because he
had just endurcd a 14-hour interrogation and had been broken. They did pot want me 1o jeopardize their interrogations. | was ol
that the GENERAL was very concernad about his son due to his age, 17yrs old. The interrogators (not sure what type of soldier
did this -MP, Intel, or exactly what MOS) took his son and got him wet. They then put mud on his face and drove him around in
the back of the Humvee. The boy was very cold. They placed the son in an area where his father could observe him. The
GENERAL thought he was going to get 1o scc his son but they just allowed him to sec his son shivering and this broks the

GENERAL (this incident suﬁsedli 100k ilhg the day.before | interrogated the General's sop). The son also verified this account;

. WANT T0 MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH:

in my interropanon of him, as with me as my analyst and took notes while [ interrogated the son. The son
said be wanted 10 go to anotlicr tent where hi$brothers were because he was afraid of the other men in s temt. :

Q. Is therc anything clsc you would like to add 1o your saicment?

A. No.
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10. EXHIBT TiIMTHLS Of N MAKING STATEMENT ,—
, PAGE 1 OF = PAGES

ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING ~STATTMENT OF TAKEN AT DATED

THE BOTTOM DF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS DF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT, AKD PAGE NUMBER MUST BE BE INDICATED.
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§. STATEMENT (Cantewed)

WHICH BEGINS ON PAGE | AND ENDS DN PAGE

BY ME THE STATEMENT STRUE 1 HAVE «NITIALED ALL CORHECTIDNS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM DF EACH PAGE CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAYE MADE THIS
STATEMENT FREELY WITHQUT HDPE OF BENEFIT OA REWARD. WITHOUT THREAT GF PUZSHMFNT AND WEMOL COERCUN, MKLENHIL IXFLUEKLE, DR GRLAWEUL BROUCTAIENT,

IDAYIT

. HAVE READ GR MAVE HAD READ TD ME THIS STATEMENT
FULLY UNDERSTANG THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MAOE

WITNESSES Subscnbad i sworn 10 balare me, » person suthorasd by lew Lo
soMmwnter oaths, thas 13TH wyer MAY . 2004
s DARMSTADT, GERMANY
ORCAM!ZATION DR ADDRESS
[Tyoad ¥ams of Person Admnisiering Oath)
UCMI, ARTICLE 136
ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS {AuthorRy To Adeniaster Qaths)

INITIALS OF iiiiDN Miimi Sli IEH{N'I

PAGE !or ! PAGES

PAGE 3, DA FOAM 2820, DEL 1998
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PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT
AUTNDRITY: Titie 10 LSC Saction 301 Tite & USC Bacuon 2851; E.0. 8387 daisd Nevwmier 22, 1843 SSA). ‘
PRINCIPAL PURPDSE: To provide commanders ad irw anfsreement offeias with mamng by which irformation may bi Acturmely identifisd.
ROUTIME USES: Your ocial Sacurity FUmbe I USed &2 a0 MGADGNAY/ANeate mams O identificEtion 80 HicEtAte Wing and retrievl.
DISCLOSURE: Distlosuse of your sacial 3ecunty numbey is volunlary.
Y. LOCATION "2 DATE /¥YYYMMED) 0. TIME ‘ FILE NUMBER
Abu Ghraib, lrag, APO AE 09335 2004/04/27 1745

7. GRADEISTATUS

IBDLE NANE 6. SSN

4. ORGANZATION OR ADGAESS ‘ . _
66th MILITARY INTELLIGENCE GROUF, Deployed 1o Abu Ghraid Correctional Facility, Abu Ghraib, Irag, APO AE 09335

WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT EINDER DATH:

I arrived a1 Abu Ghraib on 20 October 2003 to conduct interrogation operations. When I first arrived 0 Abu Ghraib, I received
& legal classes on Interrogation Rules of Engagement (JROE), the boundaries on interrogations, a tour of the facilities. on the
Third day we toured the Screening area, the LSA and bad classes on paperwork and Report Writing. We did receive minimal
training on the Geneva Convention. It was mostly whar we learned at schoo) b a step down on what technigues we could use.
We were not allowed 1o use Pride and Ego down. When 1 first arrived, COL PAPPAS was ip charge of the whoie place. |
never witnessed any detainee abuse, pever saw sny photos or the use of dogs. | never knew of any Ml personnel teling the MPs
10 "soften up” the detainee or give hem "The Trestmen:™. Any deviation gom the approved techniques had to be subrpitted and
sigoed by LTG Sanchez.
Q. Do you bave anything 1o add to this suatement?

No

< g
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10, EXHiET 0o STATEMENT ] *

ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE READWG “STATEMENT OF TAREN AT DATED

THE BOTTOM OF EALY ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS DF THE FERSON MAXING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGE NUMBER MUST 8E BE INDICATELD.
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DAVIT
. HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINS ON PAGE 1, AND ENDS ON PAGE LLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. | HAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT

THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHQUT COERCION. UNLAWFUL INFLUEN

Hogtarue of Fersamaring Siatenmes
1

Subscrived and swom 10 before me, o parson nﬁhon’ud by law to

WITNESSES-

somimister oaths, this &2 7-_ day of _/iﬂ oy . 200 ﬂ
P SR LA Hcf 'Q_\g
i 1

at I'"" ke

{Signisture of Person Adminisrerng Oath}

DRGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

{Tvped NMame of Person Administening Osth)

UCMT Prhicle [3(

YAurhority To Administer Qaths)

ORGANIZATION OR ADQRESS

. INITIALS OF PERSD NG STATEMENT
PAGE CF PA

USAPA V1.00

PAGE 3, DA FORM 2823, DEC 1898

AG0000779

DOD 000866






. PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT 4
AUTHORITY: Tide 0 USC Shction 301; Tie & LISC Section 2881; £, U397 dated Novamber 22, 1M43 [SSN!. _
PRINCIPAL PURPDSE: To provide commenders snd law snforcement oificisls with mesns by which imformation may be accurately tentilid.
Your secisl BecUity NUMber is wssd 35 Bn sdditichsl/altemts masns of idemitication 1o TRCRIETE filing anc retreval,

ROUTINE USES: .
DISCLOSURE: Disciosure 6f your satisl sscurity numbet is volurmary. :

1. LOCATION 2. DATE fYYY¥YM 3. TIME 4. FILE NUMBER
METRO PARK, SPRINGFTELD, VA 2004/05/1 142

5. LAST NAME, FIRST NAME, MIDDLE NAME l 6. SS5N I . ' . GRADE/STATUS

R ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS -
JsUCO $19TH MILITARY INTELLIGENCE BATALLION, FORT BRAGG, NC 28310

‘ ' WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH:

1 arrived u Abu Ghraib (AG) on or about 25 July 2003, afier staging thru Kuwait (12 March 2003) and sctviog for a period of -
time ip Iraq at Bushmaster and Dogwood (6 - 30 April 3003). Om May 1st I moved 1o BIAP 1o establizh the V

Interrogation Facility. We conducted a Transfer of Authori with Br325 M1 in June 2003 as'we were to soon redeploy
to the Fort Bragg. However, we had were informed hyﬁ' around 20 July tha:
1o Abu (ihraib to cxablish a special inerrogation facilry there. While on 2 recon of AG with COL Pappas

. | otbers, 1 and several othet interrogatars gave recommendations on scriing. up e facility 10 processed for scTéeTung ax
interrogating the detainees. We were first (oid that ihe objechive would be to establish & specialized facility to idestifying and
interrogating Saddam Fedayeen personnel detained as a result of Operation Victory Bounty, (A unidentificd mancuver unit was
conducting operations based on 2 list of some 1800 - 2000 pames of Saddam Fedsyecn. When CITF-7 found out about the: list,
Operatiop Victory Bousty was formed). The actal raid rounded up some 180 folks from the list ost of which only €2 proved o
be of any value. The impression I bad was that this operation was based on old and wnverified siggle-source informanon. Many
of the detainecs who were op the list really did not have any affihation with the Fedsyeen Saddam {i.c., TAYors and other.
officials who were porified they were now members of the Fedayeen Saddam then later - 2 months later - aotified they were no
longer members). At some point the decision was made 10 expand our mission o a larger scop : due 10 short falis af Camp
Cropper. 1 suspect ﬂm@DEF may have known about the consolidation of facilitics at AG and might have wanied
for AJ519 to get its foot in the door at AG and begin 10 lay a solid foundation for the comsolidated facility. Although operational
plans for new operauons called for detainees 1o be seot 1o Camp Cropper, they redireciod to AG instead. AG began 1o receive
detainees of value from all raids in the area and gradually mission cteep setin and we were oo looger ializing in aticmpting o
identify Fedeyeen Saddam personnel. 1o the beguning of the esiablishment of 1he facility a1 AG, and 205th constantly
pressured us for more and quicker rcpurmrz‘g from detainte interrogations, M times coptacting inlerrogation qcrmldn_ectly. .
Oy afier the miervention of the 519th BN Commander did they begin 1o back off and start using the established chain
without skipping echelons  On or about 12 Septetber we found out that the Joint Interrogation and Debriefing Center {

was 1o be formed at AG, mosily as a resuli of the visit by MG Muler and his team, although the decision might have beco made
prior 1o the-MG Miller visit, MG Miller and his wam recommended to COL Pappas on forming "Tiger Teams" with a dedicated
analyst, but in hindsight that might have been more suited (o a strategic environment than to our tactical situation.  Ope of the
mam problems we faced was 2 lack of thoroughness Dy Capturnng wmus, MTITs and Division cages - there seemed to be o wctical
screening, the processing was not dooe right, and capture laps were either not done or done incorrectly. By 12 September the
decision had been made 1o consalidate some facilities. and move detamecs into AG. Around 14 or 15 Scp detainees from Camp
Cropper began moving 1o AG. A coupie days later, interTogators from the 325th moved to AG. (We were joined by inem:fmn
from 66th, S00th, and 470th 1n October). While the 205th was begimning to the JIDC around mid September, CO
Pappas informed me that wanld be the JIDC Operations OIC and tha would be the Deputy JIDC CDR.
In severa) meeungs with COL Pappas e S1Mb personnel raised several issues that deeded o
be dealt with (detaines population, composition of JIDC, reponing, detention criteria, JIDC's criteria for accepting detainees
from other units, reicase process, use of Mobile Interrogauon Teams. OGA. eic.) Detainee population: 1o the beginning (end of
July 1o mid Sepiember) the 72d MP Company commenied thal the detainees held at AG were well mannered. Normalty, 519th
perbonne) ended nlerTogations by reinforcing the camp rules. Yet afier e consolidation of facllities the dewinees who had
moved from Camp Cropper and other faciliues who were not 3o well mannered or orderly began to influence our origmal
detamers. Alyo, since detamees were slow to be released, we were guickly becoming severely overcowded. ‘The engineers
orginally built the faciliry to hold 300 detainees and we bid 3 population of around 900, Detainees that had been screened and
were decmed of valuc were placed on "MI Hold® starus.  The deliniton of M1 Hold was originally our desigoation to let the
MP's kpow we were interesied in the detatnee and 10 not move them to another camp, Somchow the M1 Hold status became &
designation which needed sepi ieer approval for removal, much like the designation of Security Detainee necded senior
officer approval for rcluscw :

10, EXHIBT T1 INTIAL N MAKING STATEMENT : ?—
PAGE 1 OF - FRGES

) ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING *STATEMENT TAKEN AT DATED

THE BOTTOM OF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGE NUMBER
MUST BE BE INDICATED.

‘DA FORM 2823, DEC 1998 DA FORM 2823, JUL 72. IS OBSOLETE VRAPA V1.0

AGO00C0780

DOD 000867



vaxen a7 _SPRINGFIELD, ‘.'A pATED 2004/D3/19 |

N E . . . . ) ) - |

‘s‘rnmsm (Continuved| : . : . ) !
i t all Victory Bounty ould  Sanchez's approval for relcasc. By mid-August we

h:domnlgb;furd?ug:um;om various raids ;and I tried 1o convince those above us thas we were |

‘was bo change. Priof 10 the arrival of additional interrogatars from 325t MI, the 5}%th conducted !
ﬁgﬂg% duriog the day. Aftzr 325th interrogators arrived (on/about 13 September) up to abous 20 Scp we j
warked i two shifis: AJS19th op days and 325th on nights. The delainess moved from Cropper were & par of a buge backiog of
dem'neeuhuwmuﬂi:rdesigmmduWHoldsbyﬂSthlhldhldmyﬂbe_:n ._M'Mhmlmmm
monar anack on 20 September 2003 which killed two of our personnel. Composition of IDC: Likely mflnenced by MG
Miller's visit, a decision was made to form Tiger Teams (consisling of ap interrogator, an analyst, a reports officer and an

‘ tusy st persoone), Using our timcnnguiun:xp:nm.ﬂl%luﬂu:hipriedwuphhuCOthpu
Ml::whcstmmmm?mﬁonmmmwwmhdw&dfam.

wazs ol on ite moxt of the tme; he received input pyphog‘ndmilgndlhmm_d:demm}.
list of all in undpersann:l(bynnkmdMOS)solunhcgmorgmzm;m'nprT 1 was told . ]
would decide on the compasition of the leams, bol me. Ammdzsmzssmperwhldamum v
cobcerning changes in operations, likely due to the recend visit by LTG Smdn_lie n_stinmd chaages like "wo
rrogation, would be accotuplished uatil all mformation bad been checked out™ and *interrogations had to be
; former quickly proved to be yorealinic.  Before

1 coul wd, the tater was intensely questioned by interrogators and section keader & vo why the approval
abave Ty f{Ini=rrugation Operations) level. The approval process was Jater delegated back down to the appropriate level
sométune 1 October. Reporting: We were informed during MG Miller's viait that only a few of the 350+ Inielligence
Information Reports we had sent were actually forwarded outside of theater. Thart the fmpression hat the interrogation -
facilities were not doing their job in extracting and reponting information. MG er and others on bis team bad comsmiented that
there was pothing wrong with interrogation operstions and reporting, the problem was somtwhere up the distribution
chain (likely C2). Since there was this musperception of the lack of reporting, both BDE and C2 begna 1o ask for the actual notes
from the interrogation. Interrogalor notes arc close hold workiog _F:zcn intended to documnent in detail to aid other inerTOgAIDN
who may conduc! an inierrogaticn of the detainee at a later date, y are not imended 10 be 10 be forwmrded up the
intelligence chain, much iess lo organizations outside the intclligence chain Yet, they (C2 and TG Sanchez) had been receiving
these types of repons from other uits (TF 121 and possidly 1AD) and wanied the same from ws. _We vchemently objected 0
releasing these reports saying this would lead to others without knowledge of mierTogation opeTations qucstioning our
interrogators, their methods, and the informag obuained. We were able 10 delay releasing theae reports until 10 October
when 1 was urdcrcd%(:ol. Pappas, through that “this is & copy of the report. This is exactly bow ] want it to

look.” By mid-Ocioffer we started the process of "cleaniog up® (sanitizing them for release in a way that would zhicld the
interrogation teams a$ much as we could) the interrogator boles and submining them as Summary Interrogaton Reports. Since
there scemed 10 be an wnsatiable demand or data by C2 (waoung the interTogalion notes s00D After An inierrogation) we were
instructed to change our reponting priorities - interrogation notes, then intelligence reports, On the surface we complied,
hawever, 1 told my secuon leaders Giat if we come 2cross any miormaion that is Gme sensitive, we will t that information
firsi. Al ohe pomt we were dirccted 1o write out each guestion and response in the Interrogalion Noses. Ob , this was met
*|with mueh objeenon and did not last jong.  Sipee the JIDC quickly expanded and po ope initially took the ume to define duty
posiions and dury descriptions, there was constani confusion abowt who does what and how. Throughout this whole process ] had
the tmpression that the leadership from the BDE level on up did not know and understand the process and procedures of
interrogation operauons, which led 1o 8 confusing wad unor zamzed, amateurish, and undiscipimed organization. Motile
Interrogation Teams {MIT): We had concern over bow MITs were utilized by mancuver umts. By i

_|identify, screen, and interrogate detunees who could provide valuable information to the supporied mancuver

However, in personal conversations with some of the. MITs, it became apparent that they were used 3 .

caprure information for the detainees. They did litde 1 no screenings or mterrogations, 'When questionsd sbout the purpose of
he operatohs they were suppo. and the questions they were abie 10 ask, they stated they did aot kmow the purpose and only
questioned detainces concermung F-7 PIRs. It scemed that the mancuver units gave very broad instructions to round up any

male from 16 - 60 any other verification that they were "bad guys®. During a mecting
with COL Pappas, tuggested that the JIDC pravide MITs for specified
operations as we wowld wumately receive the and would aid us since we would already be familiar with the

operalion and the supporied Commander's FIRs.  Detention ¢riteria/JIDC aceepuance criteria: In my opinion less than 10% of
the detaipees had any real mtelligence value. We told MG Miller. MG Fast, LTG Sanchez and COL Pappas (anyone thal would
listen) that there needed to be csablished criteria for the mancuver unts and the Division cages oz whom (o look for and how 1o
process and forward derainees of value 10 the JIDC. I felt some of the Maneuver units' iBteITOEtors WErT iDETTOEMOTS in name
onlv The 4th [D folics were really bad, the | AD folks were OK and the 1015t folks were so0-30. On more thap ope occasion ]
have sccn as many as three screching $£pOMS Ob obe dewintc where the three screeners cotmunented “deceptive, needs 1o be
uierrogated by higher™ (some were also labeled as baving no inte] value but were forwarded to the JIDC). 4th 1D in particular, it
appeared they would simply pass them off without conducting any questions, sitce afier they would forward their detainees we
would receive a list of questions 10 ask them. ! responded "why don't your interrogators do their jobs?" OGA: NN bad
wha! we refer lo as ghost deusinees that were “buried” or bidden w our facility. A had staned in early Sepiember 1o come
over 1o talk 1o some of our detainees with one of our interrogators ptuﬂ*
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As ths JIDC was torming and we began to uss 1A of the “hare sits”, they

- gragually stsrted bringing thei detainess to gacility. This was done
T eite the obyections from -,H Mo explained, Dused o1
prior experience that OGA “does mot play well with others”, they did not live

the same rules a3 we did snd was notorious for receiving but not sharing
jnformation. Also, they did not sesr to havs full sccount ity for their
both premised tha
put that did m
the dealings

himseal! primarily worked i
king only with did not go through ths sstablished. process.
i pent some of his time either at the HI LSA, or the 1A hard site (I

suspect more time at the hard site than he should have).
have an affinity for OGA and special ops.

injtially questionsd and

“hroke® a cetainee ho then followed up with more guestioning. JiNJAR*
J. . ﬂ:y limited. He was not present during the
interrogation, but stated he haard slaps but was not sure if tha slaps re done
toc the de r te the table in the roam. I was not informed of an
Shortly aftet returning frox leave on 11 Dec =
003, I hesrd that ghosts died during an i{ntarrogaticn. Although I
did not delve into 21ls, I heard that it was suspected he died as a result of
wounds inflicted during cepture. Alsc, ! heard that (P vas involved,
but 1 cdec npt know the axtent of his involvemsnt. Intarrogations waze to ba
stheduled through the JIDC Interrcgation Control Elamsnt (ICE) and conducted by
interrogation teama. However, I ar aware of two occasions wheare unschaduled

interrogations by unqualified personnel were conducted. The first was conducted
b According tu~lt_hl primary interrogator for the
detainee), was direcrec by BG FAST (thw in iia .

interrogate usang the feéar up approach immedistaly. wok
. -and an anterpreter to sassisT in the intarrogation. Against the advise
Mnl;stcc or. the interrogation, knowing the detainee
hag Just endec a 72-nour adjusted sieer scnedule and was now resting and
recuperating. The detainee collapsec durang guestioning. Afterwards,

1
informed of the 1ncident and founc tha: both und!_fht*
i Iii'icmcnt Concerninc The incicdeat. The pecond inciGent a .

invoivee h female aezainese (nc: of intersgyr to MY} claimad te -
have 1nfOormatior COnCerning Sacoar husseir. "took his asmistant,

(97£ - not assignec as ar interrsg e L0 facilitate questicning
i report writing. Later, became anvolved when he lLeard that the
femaie getainee’'s family fregquent:v Visited the gates of AS to determine how she
wa5 0o0ing. He begarn to ‘tamk’ her father to previde information saying things
like “come back with some information and you can visit with your daughter”,
Although we disagreed with the wnole situation, we insisted that if he was to
Continue With his unauthotrizeg “interrogaticon” he would have to complete all
requirec reports. COL PAPPAS was aware of These interrogations. As both our
mission and detainee populatiorn quickly expanced, we did not have enough
military IRIETrNgATOrs to handle tne workload. CACI cortract interrogators
STATrtec IC Arrive in micd~0October. For the most part the
professional and experianced, wWith the axception of - He was
very limited in his skill set anc seenec ©c uae the “fear up” guickly during
interrogatior. I talked with his section leacder about this observation and
suggestec he talk with{f abour i:. and posaibly would
interviev the inctoming CACI personnel to determine their background and
experience. Although I was never inlfosmed that we could reject any ungualifiag
CACl personne., 1 did know bared on working with contractors in the past that we
nad an influence in accepting/rejecring the contractors. 1 trusted that the

-l

. o,
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Army‘'s hiring process had some built in guality comtrol IAW the Statement of
Work, which was resident with the on site manager. I had heard that CACI
personnel were not to superviase military personnel or serve as team leaders, but
in fact at least one of thm#did 8¢ temporarily for about 2 or 3
weeks, at least -until some o he 66th and 500th military persponnel came on
board. I do not know who approved the decision to make him a temporary
supervisor, nor do I know if a waiver was requested or approved. I did not
personally interview all of he CACI personnel as they arrived since I was too
busy with other duties such as maintaining the database, managing interrogation
operations, responding to email inguiries, and ocscasionally editing reports,
etc. However, 1 did sit down and talk with a few. as I had time available. All
personnel (CACI, Titan and military} went through our "new guy" briefing and
orientation, which entailed information on JROE, interrogation and reporting
processes, and a tour of the facility. They were given a statement to sign
acknowledging that they had received a briefing, read and understood the IRCE.
The signed copies of these statements were kept in a black 2w - 3 inch binder in
the ICE Operation section. Interrogation Rule of Engageament: From the time we
arrived in Kuwait on 12 March 03 to the day we arrived in AG on 25 July 03, I
never saw a document with the approved IRCE from either V Corps or CJTF-T.
During that time we relied on our past experiences with past interrogaticn
facilities. When we move to ARG to establish our fourth interrogation facility,
we knew this facility was geing to have high visibility and that other
facilities were having problems. As a result, we began te cutline our own IROE
drawing upon our experiences with other facilities, issues ldentified at Camp
Cropper, and procedures used by TF 121. 1In addition to’ the IROE, we drafted
requests toc use civilian clothes and modified grooming standards. We submitted
these requests to CJTF-7 {(through BN, BDE, and C2) and requested the approvals
to be filed in writing. Only through ersistence did the IRCE
finally reach CZ/JAG and LTG Sanchez. I never saw any signed copy ©f the IROCE,
but saw a message which said they had been approved. I can only assume the
Civilian Clothes and Modified Grooming requests were denied since I never heard
anything more about them. The IRDE were constantly meodified and each change was
to be signed by a General Officer. All personnel had to acknowledge that they
were aware 0f the changes. RAgain, signed copies of these statements were kept in
a black 2w - 3 inch binder in the ICE Operation section. All new personnel were
trained in proper procedures; people knew the boundaries. The IROE were posated
in several places and we wers always talking about them. For certain approaches
such as sleep deprivation {adjusted sleep schedule), we had to write up a
schedule and submit a request with the interrogation plan. It would be reviewed
by the JAG ancd sent to COL PAPPAS for approval, but LTG Sanchez would be
informed. I do not know for sure but 1 felt that COL PAPPAS was informing the
General. Other methods had to be approved by LTG Sanchez; I never saw any
written approvals but was informed that it was done electronicelly. Each of
these requests was forwardec up the chain for approval. For approved sleep
deprivation the schedule was given tc the MPs to implement, but I do not know
how they handlid it or who, if any one, in the MPs approved how they were to

implement it

Initials of pcrsztcment Page L{ of gfpagcs
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P&, STATEMENT (Continved) . :
Optimally, 1 would Jike to have constant interrogations conducted while a detaipee was under the adjusted sicep schedule,

However, it took too many resources (interrogators/linguisis) away from other interrogalions or onc interrogation team would be
as much sleep deprived as the detainee it would have been fruitless, The use of slecp deprivation was monitored; we did not want
10 harm Lhe detainees. Beginning-in mid-December we had Air Force doctors monitor the detainees. One instance for t of

a guard dog (in late December) entailed having the dog under conirot of the handler but present during the intcrrogation
#&as the interrogator, No direct reference was made to the dog, but it was felt that just the prescnce of the dog would

unseitling' to the detainee, as we knew the detai ere typically afraid of dogs. I do not know who actually approved the
procedure, but 1 had verbal notification fruw who got it from COL Pappas, that it was approved, The writicn
approval should be on file with the JAG. The MPs ofteri used the dogs for random mnspections. | did pot see any maltreatment of
detainees with the-dogs. .
Abuses: Some time in late September or carly October, there was an incident involving the use of alcoho! and an unsuthorized
interrogation of a female detainee. This was quickly dealt with. It involved an interrogator, fwo 97Bs and a Titan interpreter.
The three saldicrs were reduced in rank and given extra duty. I do not know exactly what happened to the Titan contractor, but I

do know ¢r worked for us as an interpreter for interrogations. Although I was not mvolved with the incident, [ am
sure tha informed Titas that the interpreter was no longer welcomed and should be fired. Shortly afterwards,
although we aid not have any female detainces of M1 interest, the procedures for dealing with female detainees were added - only
fernales could interTogate female detainees. After | returned from leave 11 December ] informed of the incident wi

S i which she made a detainee strip and ed. mmended ap Article 15 for
humiliating the detainee but was overniled by was taken off interrogaror rotation and given extra
duty. 1did not witness any physical abuse of detainees. | saw some "ndrmal” pictures of AG which included detainees, but

nothing of an untoward natuse, I told my personnel taat pictures wers Dot to be laken. ] was aot aware of any exchanges of
pictures among personnel. I am not aware of any videos made. My personnel never rcported (o me that they bad observed any
abuse, humiliation or use of guard dogs during § atico. 1f ] had been told or knew of any incidents I would have reported
them. For example, in late Deccmkr.%mﬂ:u@d concern that the one of the MPs may be
“taking things too far”, possibly abusing detainees. The MP was carlier shot in the chest by a detaines who obtained a gun
smuggled in by ooc of the Irggd t was thought ghis incident was affecting his judgment when handling deainees. We
brough! these concerns up (0 and mssiblwho then talked with the MPs. 1am not aware of the
outcame as | as preparing to Jeave Irag ofi Emergen ¢ Comment on the picture of the detainee on the ground surrounded
by Ml and MPs; I identified *ﬁ k 97E U 965, and QN Tian Contractor, 1 was

B
uhable to identify the other individual in the picture who is said to be MI. Looking at the picture and noticing who is preseat and
their state of dress, | am certain it is not an interrogation as reported by the press. 1. Night shift MPs are ,prescnt 2.

Qs i shorts and flipflops (ghis also tells me that it occurred early 1o October when 325th lived pear the facility and aot in the
NE compound. 3. as mever assigned as an interrogator, although he is a 97E. 4. Inertogations never
occurred 1n the open arcatal the prison. Always in the booths, the statrwell, or the detainees’ cells. 5. 1 belicvadiii@was an

interpreter for THT at this time.
Q. Is therc anything eise you would like to add to this statzmenmt?

A. No
TR LT Bl of Sutcmcnl.fli/lH/HIHHIHHIHHIIIHIHNHIIIIIHHIIIHIHII/HH.’HHHIIIHIH/H'

AFFIDAVIT
1 . HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TQ ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINGS ON PAGE |, AND ENDS DN PAGE_S' ULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

BY ME THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. | HAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT H@PE OF BENEFIT OR
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION. UNLAWFUL INFLUENCE, OR

rson Making Statement}

WITNESSES: Subscnbed and sworn 1o before me, a porson suthorized by law to
adminester osths, this 19TH  duy of MAY . 2004
ot_Mctro Park Springfield, VA

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS rson Administering Osth}

—
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MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD : A& May b3

subject: Telepbonic Imerview (NG

Purpose of the in;:rvieﬁv was to clarify possibly conflicting statements goncerning
detainees being stripped naked and held in cells in the 1A sres,
was 1ot uncommon 1o se¢ peoplc without clothing and that the : ing was an

ight have been the one who designated which detainee
and held naked. -contradtcted the statement made b

1730 — 1740, 27 May 1 conducted a telephonic interview o A Co,

519" Ml Bn, Fort Bragg, NC. A call was to his cell om
my extension at Metro Pal explained that | was following
up on his previous interview and had just & couple of questions ebout intake, screening

and placement of detainees awaiting interrogution.

QD 1zinicd the detninees were dropped offfdelivered by capturing upit or escored

by MPs from capturing unit. Initial screening was done byl_#nd the '
screening seclion, mainly by reviewing capture ag and some limited questioning. This
was mainly to determine MI potential and whether to put on Ml Hold or into general -
prison population. Early on, all were moved to Gangci or “Tent City™ as cell block 1A did
not become operational and used by M until early to mid-September icated
that they were under pressure from Bde and higher to use it carlier, but it was not really
available or suitable. Bsaid he had pushed for a FRAGO to force the issue if Bde
really insistad, but one was never cut.

There was no M1 written policy about mandatory clothing or stripping the detainees.
However, if an interrogator wanted to temporarily strip a detaince as a psychological ploy
10 assist in interrogating him, it would have required a written request submitted with the
~ interrogation plan. -does not recall ever processing or reviewing one during his
tour of duty. Further, it would have to have been bucked up the line for approval (he
believed it would go to COL Pappas for approval). felt that it was mainlya MP
call and tha! detainces might be stripped for security purposes, but that would be only for

a specific inspection or shakedown. The MP preference was for detainees 1o be in
jumpsuits, bul.- did not know if there was a formal, written policy to that effect.

He remembered one oceasian where I found out about a detainee being kept
either nude or in underwear and asked the MPs who stated that it was MP SOP to strip
dewinees of their civilian clothing when they came 1o 1A and give them jumpsuits, If

_ there was no jumpsuit, then the detainee would stay in his skswws#told the
MPs that was unacceptable and to get the deainee some clothing; they did riot have o
Jumpsuit, recumn his origioal civilian clotung. He reconfirmed his previous statements
that he had not seen any naked detninees or detainees in women's underwear.

AG0000785
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50 stated that at one time, exact date unrecalled, MG Fast had informed him
. that the MPs had asked for more jumpsuits in the supply system and received underwear
instead. He did not know if they were men’s or women’s underwear.

I then mentioned tPﬂm some mention had been made by others of detainees
being kept nude in their cells in 1A for periods of time and wrapped in sheets or blankets
when brought out for interrogation. He stated that he had not seen any of that, nor was it
reported to him by any of the interrogators or interpreters.
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CITF7-TF-FAY 10 June 2004

MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD

sunmcr:moz" M BN
1. (FOUO) On 9 June 2004, the undersigned telephonically contactch
'the 302" MI BN, Wiesbaden, GM, to clarify detals taken in a 13 May sworn

was identified b

statement and 31 May telephonic interview wit concerning his
knowiledge of abuse at Abu Ghraib.
his associates with whom he passed rumours of abuse.

as one of

Hs an analyst assigned to A Compeny, 302* MI BN, Weisbaden, GM. He was
cpioyed to Abu Ghraib from 15 October 2003 to February 2004. For his first month
there he was assigned to an interrogation team. His Team Chief wns
his interrogator was, His duty was 1o conduct ana.lySIs and develop
guestions for ‘{0 use in mtcrrogauons On occasion he sat in on an
interrogation. isited Tier 1A oniy a few times. He never observed or heard of
detainee abuse and/or nudity while at Abu Ghraib. After his first mon
reassigned to an ad-hoc d force to escort detai and security and safety
during interrogatjoan_ cre on
the guard force and as Sergeant of the Guard not recall
spcakmg about or purporting knowledge of detainee nbusc-iid
not recall hearing rumours or allegations of abuse until after the public disclosure of the
abuse photos. 1 had claimed knowledge of abusc_would not
" likely have believed him.

d

2. () PQC is the undersigned.

Lieutenant Colonel,

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY
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PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT
AUTHORITY: Thie 10 USC Section 301; Tinke & USE Section 2851; £.0. 9387 datwd November 27, 1943 [S3A/
| PRIKCIPAL PURPOSE: Ta provide commatders med law nforcement oficiais with TS ry whith informstion may be Scately wentified.
ROUTIME USES: Your sociat sacurity mambbe i Used as 0 Sdeitional/aitemate memns ol identification Lo Inciilats fing and retsiecal.
DISCLOSURE: Dischuzurs of your SO0 sacunty namb & vohntary.
1. LOCATION 2. OATE /FPYYMMOD; 3. Mg 3 - 4, FLE KUMBER
Fort Huachuca MID, Fort Huachuca, AZ 2004 106/10 OF 2L

LE NAME 6. SSN . 7. GRADESSTATUS
B. DREAMIZATION OR ADDRESS

Phoenix Consulting Group Inc., Huntsville, AL
8

. WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER DATH:

From 7 - 21 Oct 03, | was al Abu Ghraib (AG), Irag as pan of a five person Mobile Training Team (MTT) from Fort Huachuca,
AZ. The mission of the leam was to provide an overall assessment of interrogation operations, training and advice and
assistance. My focus was the anatyncal portion of the opcration. 1 spent most of my time in the apalytical cell observ
operations and the ipleraction between imterrogators and analysts. Upon our arrival at AG, we were greeted by
We were also provided a tour of the facility. The eam spem the first couple of rlays settirg up, conducting an assessment of the.
operations and establishing a training schedule based on the assessment. The training lasted five days and focused on refining
interrogaion skills and techniques including questioning and elichation techniques, cultural awareness, the TIGER TEAM
concept, collecuon management and use of interpreters. | was the primary instructor for several analytically cncated blocks of
insoruction including requirements management, analyiical SUppon 1o interrogators and datsbase mapagement. The traing was
based on the TIGER TEAM concept. When we got there. the inteyrogators had already started 1o employ this technique as the
analysts pantic:pated in the interrogatons. The operations cell was working hard to get the administrativ i thepperation
u ed to include the uniform standurds, convoy procedures overall standard operatng procedures.
Prorked diligently and were very dedicated 1o establishing procedures. The operation was under a lot of pressure Ir
the coramand m Baghdad 10 get results. Even though there was pressure to report, there appeared 10 be 2 general Jack of
communication and logstical suppon. The command i Baghdad did not seem 10 completely understand the operation. 1 did not
have much contact with the interrogators as | spent a majonty of my time in the analytical cell observing operations. In my
opinion the apalysts worked extremely hard 1o support interrogauon operations. During my ume at AG, 1 did not witness any
wbuse or malireatnent of detainees. ] never witnessed nor heard of any Ml person asking or insinuating that an MP should abuse
u detaipee. ] never witnessed nor heard of any MP offering to abuse 2 derainee to assist inierrogation operations. | also never

wimessed nor heard of any dogs being used in imerToga

Q: Do you bave anything to add 10 this statement” m

Ac No iR 1 e L O R T T T
FHEIIIE T E 0 R EITEDd. of Suavemnent/ /2 LHHEIETEREEEE T ET R LA L L L1

10 EXHBIT 1 T KING STATEMENT ’_
. PAGE 1 OF FAGES

ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST LONTAIN THE HEADING “STATEMENT OF . TAREN AT - UATED —

THE BOTTOM GF FACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAXING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGE NUMBER MUST BE BE INCICATED.

DA FORM 2823, DEC 19498 DA FORM 2823, JUL 72.15 QBSOLETE UBAPA V190
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9. STATEMENT [Cantiniend)

AFFIDAVIT

: . HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TD ME THIS STATEMENT

PHICH BEGINS DN PAGE 3. AND ENDS ON PAGE g | FULLY NDERSTAND THE CONTENTS DF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

BY ME THE STATEMENT ISTRUE. 1HAVE INITHALED ALL CORRECTVONS AND HAYE INITUALED THE BOTTOM OF EACK PAGE CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS
STATEMENT FREEL" WITHDUN MOPE OF BENEFT OR REWARD. WITHOUT THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND MITHOUT CUERCIDN, OR SNLAWFLL INDUCEMERT.

{Siguniwy of g
WITHESSES . Sabscnbad s 3wom o hebors me, & person asthoried by law 12
ammuasier paths, 1as 10th  dayef June .

hucs Military Intelligence Detachmen

GAGANIZATION OR ADDRESS ISparters of Parson Adrisesiarny Gamd)
Typed Mams al lh tareey Dari/
SU.5.C. 303
GRGANIZATION OR ADDRESS fAuthorsty To Adsievsiar Darks/
INITIALS DF PERSON MAKING STATEME , -
PAGE 01/ oF 2 eagEs
PAGE 3 DA FORM 2823, DEC 1997 VaAPA 110
AGOQQ0789
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CITF7-TF-FAY | 10 June 2004

MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD

susrec. (R - 1 =

1. (FOUO) On 9 June 2004, the undersigned telephonically contacte,
t the 302 MI BN, Wiesbaden, GM, to clarify details taken ina 13
Mai 2004 sworn statement and 31 May telephonic interview wi

concerning his knowledge of abuse at Abu Ghraib. @ Poras
identified bdﬂ.s one of his associates with whom he passed rumours of

abuse.

. Bs an analyst assigned to A Company, 302™ MI BN, Weisbaden, GM.
‘He was deployed to Abu Ghraib circa October 2003 to February 2004. For his first few
months he was assigned to two interrogation teams. His Team Chiefs were ]
and c sat in on one interrogation; in Tier 1A (Stairwell). He never
obsérved or heard of detainee abuse and/or nudity while a1 Abu Ghraib. He belived that
detainees may have been stripped when put.into isolation but had no direct knowledge of
this. After his first month reassigned to an ad-hoc force 10
escort detainees and ensure security and safety during interrogations.
ere on the guard force an Sergeant of

gc Guard. _-was in Tier 1A approximately once a we k to pick up
dewinees for interrogation NN did not rec caking about or
purporting knowledge of detainee abuse. id hear general rumours of

abuse (unrecalied sources) and once heard of a detainee being raped by fellow detainees.
ould address his soldiers about once a week and ion there were lots

of rumours and unless o cts got 1o spread them. “ad claimed
knowiedge of abus » ould not likely have believed him.

2. (U) POC is the undersigned.

Lieutenant Colonel, USA

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY
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PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT
AUTHORITY: Title 10 USC Saction 301; Tite b USC Secuon 2851; €£.0. #3587 detad Novernber 22, 1943 (SSN/.
PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: To provide commandars and taw antorcemant officiala with mesns by which informaton may be sccurstaly wentified.
ROLTINE USES: Your sociel security number is usad a¢ sn additionsl/aiternste masns of idantification to facititata filing and retnaval.
DISCLOSURE! Discigsure of your sacial secunty number is veluniary.
1. LOCATION ﬁ 2. DATE (YYYYMM, 3. TIME 4. FILE NUMBER
94th RRC, Devens, MA 3 e 2004/05/29
B. LAST NAME, FIRST NAM i! NAME 6. SSN 7. GRADE/STATUS

8. ORGANIZATION DR ADDRESS .
325th Military Intelligence Battalion, Bast Windser, CT

‘ . WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH:

| am currently the Command Sergeant Major {CSM) of toe 325th Military Intelli {MI) Baualion (BN), East Windsor, CT,
baving been assigned 1o that position on 21 Jan 03. The 325th MI BN deployed for Irag on 7 Feb 03, and | was the CSM for the
entire Iraq deployment. We (Headquariers and Headquarners Service Company (HHSC)) conducted a home station mobilization ay
East Windsor, CT, for a few days and then arrived at Fort Dix, NJ, on 14 or 15 Feb 03. We processed and trained at Fort Dix fof
approximartely a month ani then deployed o Kuwait i mid Mar 03. We sayed ot Camp Virginia, KU, for approximstely three tq
four weeks, where we were attached to the 205th MI Brigade. On appros imately early to mid Apr 03, the batalion HHSZ moved,
north to Balad Army Airfieid, north of Baghdad, where the baRtalion headquarters remained until the 325th re-deployed m Nov
03. ] was only ai Abu Ghrayb (AG) on three occasions and all three visits were one-day trips. My first visit was an 21 Sep 03,
the day afier cpe of my soldiers was killed in a mortar aiack on AG. 1 went to AG 1o get to the bottom of how the two roops
were killed. When | got there | found soldiers swaying in tenis with no overhesd cover, & sleeping stone's throw from the
prisoners. The mortar round had penetrated the sofi side of an ARFAB and delonated on contact with & tabie, creating an air-bursy
cxplosion that kilicd the troops.  After the mcident, the roops were moved inside buildings that afforded better protection. 1
toured a good portion of AG, bur not the entire facility. | saw some jail cells, but I don’t belicve 1 toured the arca known as the
"hard sitc”. Most of:hc{rimnm 1 saw were in a fenced ares surrounded with barbed wire.  All the prisoners | saw that day werd
clotbed in regular Arab clothes, and nothing about their clothing Annped ouwt at me. I never saw any prisoner naked or dressed in
women's clothing. | never saw any prisoner atuse. My second visit to AG was sometime in Oct 03 and was a site visit 1o check
on my troops. [ toured the area known as the "hard site™ on one occasion to Iy o gel an idea of the layowt of the prison. During
that visit, all the prisoners were dressed in regular garb and [ did not see any naked prisoner or any wearing women's clothing., [
did not speak 0 any of the Military Police (MP) or the MP leadership during that visit. [ did not sec or hear of any prisoner a
or anylhing oul of the ordmary. My third visit to AG was w anend a conference with the 205th BDE Commander, it the
conference was eventually cancelled and ] retumned 1o Balad later the same day. While wailing for the Commander, | had a
w alk to many of my 325th soldiers, but | did not tour the facility. On my three mrips 1o AG, | had many discussions with my
soldiers there. Nonc of my soldiers ever reporied or discussed apything out of the ordinary at AG. No ope ever wld me abow
any concerns about the treaument of prisoners.. | never saw, nor heard of, any prisoner abuse. | never saw, nor heard of,
unauthorized photographs or videos of prisoners. [ never saw, nor heard of, mulitary working dogs being used in interrogations.
Those times that | was at AG, | wasn't very impressed with the MPs 1 saw there, Looking at it from a scnior NCO perapective,
the MPs did not appear very professional. They appeared undisciplined, out of uniform, and didn't Appear m:m‘
ordered
mguiry. !

leadership. | remmember thinking 1o myself “what were the unor leaders and company commander doing” .

me to not discuss details of this mQuiry wi ¢ DT Whan (bose Invesugaors [ know o b directly involve L
have nothing further to add 1o this stalemen R L T L
I R T T L T {ITEND OF STATEMENT/HHHIHHHHmmummmmnunuuW

/

-

PO EXHIBIT Tf 17. INITIALS OF PER AKING STATEMENT

ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING "STATEMENT TAKEN AT DATED

THE BOTTOM OF LACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INTTIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT. AND PAGE NUMBER
MUST BE BE INDICATED.
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9. STATEMENT (Continued)

AFFIDAYIT

WHICH BEGINS ON PAGE 1, AND ENDS ON PAGE
BY ME THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. { HAVE INITIAL

"THREAT OF PUNISHMENT. AND WITHOUT COERCIDN, UNLAWTUL INFLLIENCE JOR UNLAWFUL INDLICEMENT.

WITNESSES:
sdrminister oaths, this 290 day of May

, HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
LLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
ALL CORPECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE

CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT

Subscribed and sworn 10 baiors ma, a person authorized by law 10

2004

hHemy &-7
ORGANZATION OR ADDRESS

'son Adminisienng

SUSC 303

Oath}

DRGANIZATION OR ADDRESS {Authority Ta Administer Osths}

133

INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMEN
PAGE F
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PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT )
AUTHORITY: " Ticw 10 USC Section 301; Titke 5 USC Swctioe 2951: £.0. 9337 dned Neverdar 22, 1840 (554,
F PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: To provide commanders and taw miorcament officials with rmem by which infaimation may ba scourataly entified.
ROUTINE USES: ' You! $ocas SECunNy AITORS 13 used bs pn pddiI0AS/AIEEMaLE Means of wantitation 1o Taciitate filng and 1etiieval.
DISCLOSURE. Digciasurs of your social 3ecuniy sumber 13 volumtary.
5. LOCATION 2. DATE (YYYYMMIDD] TIME FILE NUMBER
DARMSTADT, GERMANY 2&)&/{'}5!;”r M

7. GRADE/STATYS

B " eamm—— sor

8. DRGAMIZATION OR ADDRESS
B/302ND Military Intelligence, Wiesbaden, Germany APO AE 09096

a. i -
—___ , WANT TO MAKE THE £0LLOWING STATEMENT UNOER DATH

-

] was assi 1o Abu Ghraib the first week of Noyember 2003. | was assigned to 2 Tiger Team as an Apalyst. 1 worked with
inl£ITORALOr) When | first arrived we received some training on what we could do and not
0. We were also told of some of the IMterTogatio hriques that required the GENERAL 's apprnval I signed several forms

but 1 do not remember if 1-signed the Interrogation Rules of Engagement. ! might have. ] wasn't absolutely sure of all the rules
and thought that som: of the rules did not apply to me.jae 75t and my dutics were to escort detainees and sit
in a booth with interrogators. Onz day, 1 saw a civili a civilian working for CACI) grab a detainee off
the Humvee and drop him to the ground. He then dra, tion booth. The entire time, the detainee

had his hands cuffed. As the detainee tried 10 get up on his koee ould yank him very hard and make him
fall again. - as an ioterrogator working with
wrote a swo tement to CID a week la e CID agent was not concern

his supervisor 1
my report because he

focusing on another incident. made 2 staigment and everyo he had been called back and be was outcast

by the other CACI employees™. n ke 10 bout incidents, ade him feel like he was ranting or

whining. 1f you saw something and repo , 1t was your word against thei disciplinc was a slap on the hand. -When |

reported it to CID, | felt that they could get it to the right authoriues. There were stories before 1 even got there that some of the

incident occurred in front of higher rank and pothing was said  The.place was loosely run and interrogators had free reign for

interrogations. We knew w dn't touch thern. No one ever explained to me what MPs could gr could not do. | satin on an
1 i i here a detainee told hup that a dog had binen him on the leg. ried it 1o
wrote it in his report, I have identified the detainee on a photo marked n fi

ome of the detainees in the isolation cell did not wear clotbes because they were memtally unstable. Our detainee was
ause he had peed a)l over his jumpsuit and he had it hanging on his cell to dry. Another naked detaince pooped all over
humself, ate it and rubbed on the wall. He did thus al! oo us own. | saw a pair of women's' uaderwear in one of the detainees celf
but he was wearing a jumpsuit. | pever wimessed or was sware of any photos ar videos of detainees.

-1Q. Do you have anything else 1o add to this starement?

A. No.

T L L E O LT 1 PR 01 Swawement /TR L L L

.
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1C. EXHIBIN 11 MTIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT ”.
PAGE 1 OF =
ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE WEADING “STATEMENT OF o TAKEN AT

THE BOTTOM OF EACH ADBITIONAL FAGE MUST BEAR THE WITIALS OF THE;ERSON MANING THE STATEMENT. ANG PAGE NUMBER MUST BF B INDICATED.
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9. STATEMENT (Cartimes) . /

_ . REAQ OR HAVE HAD READ T0 ME TKIS STATEMENT

WHICH BEGINS ON PAGE 1, AND ENDS ON PAGE 2 ~*YRULLY UNGERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

BY ME. THE STATEMINTIS TRUE. I HAVE INITIALED ALL CORRLZTIONS AND HAVE LATIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. ! HAVE HAADE THIS
STATEMENT FREFLY WITHOUT HDPE OF BENEFIT DR REWARD. WITHOUT THREAT GF PUNISHMERT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWE LAWFUL INDUCEMENT.

WITNESSES Subscobad and sworn (¢ hatore me. & parson suthorued by law to
i ter paths, thi 13th  dey et MAY . 2004
s DARMSTADT, GERMANY

GRGANIZATION BR ADDRESS
l {Typed Name of Parson Admustermyg Ot
: UCMJ, ARTICLE 136
DRGANIZATION OR ADDRESS {Airtherrty To Admnctter D3Iy
mlfms OF PERSON MAXING STATEMENT m
PAGE PAG
FPAGE 3. DA FORM 2823 DEC 1998 VOAPA V1L
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- , PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT
AUTHORITY: Tite 10 USC Section 301; Tite 5 USC Section 2059; £.0. 9397 dated November 22, 1943 (SSN).
PRINCIPAL ~ - To provios commanders and faw enforcement officials with means by which infrration may be accurately identified
ROUTINE USES: Your soclal security number is used as an addilionalfaltemate means of identification (o facilitate fiing ang remaval
DISCLOSURE: Disciosure of your social secunty number is volurtary

1. LOCATION 2 DATE {YYYYMM, §3..TIME 30 4. FILE NUMBER
METROPARK SPRINGFIELD, VA zowoszzu o

7. GRADE/STATUS

& LAST NAME, FIRST NAME 6. SSN . -
. SGT

8. ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS
B/14)st Miljtary Intelligence Batalion, Logan Utah

) . -
—____ | WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH.

I armived at Abu Ghraib o/a 23 September 2003, We had jus: departed Camp Bucca where we were conducting interroganon
operations. While at Canip Bucea, 1 couducted many intcrrogatons, but my duties were part of a roaintenance team working or hife
"|support issues. The nterrogations condueted at Camp Bucca were all within the FM 34-54. There were none that went above the
FM. The first davs we armived at Abu Ghraib, we wers given the Interropation Rules of Enpagement (TROES) and madc to read and
sign 2 fonm stating we understood the IROEs  There were no surprises on the IROEs. 1t wes clear cut what we could and could not
tlo with the right approval. 1 was placed on the screcmung team. 1 conducted oniy a few inerrogations f ¥
wanted 10 conducrt 2 final 1nterogation on some females who we wanted to release. Before we released them, & final mtetrogation
had to be conducted. | also conducted s Knowledgeability Brief on a deminee for the ICE. All the other interrogators were busy
with their interrogations and had & backlog of detamees to interrogate. During my time at Abu Ghraib, 1 never ssw or had any
knowledge of any deiminee abuse, photos or videos of dewinees, or the use of dogs during intcrrogations. The only time | knew

anything abour photos was after CID had already begun their wnvestigation. An MP (I do not recall his name) told me that a femaie
MP had soms Eicmn:s of herself and another soldicr. I asked him if e had talked to CID and he said no. 1 then went and spoke to

ut the incident. He told me to go and tell CTD. I wentand told CID. I wasn't required to make a swormn
Staternent. The' Warrant Officer didn't seem too concern about it. (all this was after CID had already begua their investigation). |
have no knowiedge of M1 telling MPs to soften up or lonsen up a detainee for interropations. When we screened detainees, they
were taken to Two locanons, they wouid cither go 10 one compound for M1 Holds or another compound. Once when I had 1o drop off
a detainer 1 the hard site. ] heard loud music. | saw an MP trying to get a detainee in the cell and the detainee was resisting. the MP
hir the dewinee once to try 10 get himun. He didn't hat bum hard. [ reported the incident i
went and spoke 1o the MPs and then notified me that the MPs were having 3 bard time gettmg the detzinee in the cell and there wiis
nothing else done. | only went to the hard site on a bandful of oecasions but never at mught Aftera group of detainces had been
released. one of the MPs raught the detainees Jmgle Bells and recorded the detainees singing Jingle Bells for about 10 seconds. This
was reported to CID during my mital questonmg P
Q. Is thers anyihing else you would like to edd to ths stattment”
A. No
G LT T T L TSI 0 T nd of StatementWI IR IT I,

M oHhun

~T

oW DS

10 EXHIBIT 11 INITI MAKING STATEMENT
PAGE 1 OF

AODITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING “STATEMENT TAKENAT ____ DATED _____

T

PAGES

THE BOTTOM OF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGE NUMBER
MUST BE BE INDICATED

OA FORM 2823, DEC 1998 DA FORM 2823, JUL 72, 1S OBSOLETE UBAPA V1.00
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& _STATEMENT (Cortinued)

WHICKH BEGI 1, AND ENDS DN PAGE

BY ME THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. | HAVE INITIALBETALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INTIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
"‘CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY ‘WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD. WITHOUT

WITNESSES: SJESCNDRE ARG SWOrN 1 DEIOrE Me. 3 DBISON Atharzas oy law Lo
a0mrusicr cams, Tus 24l day of MAY oG

10 PARK. SPRINGTILLD. V- &

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

:Smnaire of Parson ACiInstenns wanh !

{Typed Narme of Person Administenng Oath)

‘ UCMI ARTICLE 136
ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS (Authorty To Aamimster Oaths)

INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT
PAG ES

PAGE 3, DA FORM 2473, DEG 1998 UAARA V1.0

AGODO0796

DOD 000883






PRIVACY ACT BTATEMENT _
AUTHONITY: Title 10 USC Secticn 301; Titie § LSC Section 2051; E.Q. 8397 dated November 22, 1943 ISSNJ.
PRINCIPAL PURPOSE:  To provide commangers snd law enforcement officials with means by which information may be accuratety
ROUTINE USES: Your social secwrity number is usad &3 an sdditionsl/siternete meens of identification 1o facilitate filing snd retreve.
DISCLOSURE: Disciosure of your social security number is vohuntary. ‘
1. LOCATION 2. DATE (YYYYM a, TIME 4. FiLE NUMBER
CAMP VICTORY 2004/05/0 2112

E. SSN 7. GRADESTATUS
SGT

. LAST NAME, FIRST MIODLE RAME

B. ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS
372nd Miliary Police Company

9 .
ﬁ , WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH:

 arTived 10 Abu Ghraib 1 October 2003. My piatoon was responsible for escorting detainers from Abu Ghraib 1o the court bouse,

the CSH and other i jlities jn downtown Baghdad. Several soldiers who had corrections officer experience were taken

o work in the prison. | seiected 10 put a traiging environment plan due to his civil 3rd platoan,

my platoon, rotated escon duties and I volunteered to work in Camp Vigi d Deccmber, w t to work

as ap escort, J was placed mn the Hard Sitc and take over his shift wi 1 never observed or any

detainees. !E d heard of photos being taken of some detaines who shit all over Timself. [ pever saw the photos
mever

Mold e if anyone ever wanted me o do something to get it in writing because if nok, RO one 15 going me up. L
Ps smie that M1 kad encourged them to abrase @ detamee. Dogs were used to scarch for drugs, bot | pever heand of;|

MI using dogs during intstrogstions. | never saw dogs being used inappropriate. Abu Ghraib is an isolated place and po ooe ever
came by to check up on us. I saw the battalion commander and battalion sergeant major maybe two of three times, I only
re sexing my first scrgeant and commander at my work area oo Thanksgiving and Christr i i saw maybe
two Gmes-powhere pcar my work arca. My platoon scrgeant and plawoon keader did not check up on us cither, OGA did drop off
“ghost” detainees. They were aot accouned for or kept wacked off. They would just tell us to feed and treal thermtbe same 28
other detamees until they figured owt whether they had information the military needed.
Q. i‘1'.3<J]yolu huve apything else to add to this statememn?
A. No
FEREEIT R TR R L L TERD. of Sateroent!IHTHIIINIITHTI T TN CHIE TR,

-~

10, EXHIBIT 11. INITIALS ING STATEMENT
PAGE 1 OF

ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAWN THE HEADING "STATEMENT TAKEN AT ___ DATED _ _ .

THE BOTTOM OF EACH AODITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGE NUMBER
MUST BE BE INDICATED.

DA FORM 2823, DEC 1998 DA FORAM 2823, HA 72, IS OBSOLETE USAPA V) G
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8. STATEMENT [(Continued)

~
.

N

L
fY L

IDAVTT

, HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH S ON PAGE |. AND ENDS ON PAGE LLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
BY ME THE STATEMENT IS TRUZ. | HAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVF INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFTT OR REWARD, WITHOUT
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION. LINLAWFUL

{Signature of aking Steternent)
WITNESSES: Subscnibed and swom 1o betore me, a parson suthonzed by law to
sdminster osths, ttus_TTH _ day of MAY . 2004

Y, BAGHDAD, IRAQ

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS {Simature of Persan

Typed Name o n Administering Oath}
UCMI, ARTICLE 136
ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS fAutharty To Adrwnister Oaths)
INITIALS OF PERSON M STATE m—
FPAGE 3. DA FORM 2822, DEC 1998 VBARA V1.00
aAG00Q0798

DOD 000885






' PRIVALY ACT STATEMENT }
AUTHORITY: " Tie 10 USC Section 01; Tids § LSC Section 2051; E.O. K337 deted November 22, 1043 (SSN).. ,
PRINCIPAL Tommmummmmwmmmhmmmmq
ROUTINE USES: Your social SeCUrty NUMbEr is Used 23 Bn acdtional/atemais means of identiication ko taciites Ring anc reteval,
' Distiosure i MDer t$ voLInary.
?ELOCLC?A?:;: ) - = - . FILE NUMBER
Mero Park, Alexandria, VA
. LAST MIDDLE NAME

& ORGANIZATION OR ADORESS
17323 West Mount Stephen Ave, Canyon Country, CA 91337

, WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER DATH:

to Iraq. ] amived in Abu Ghraib oo
b 1 initially was itroduced o CW2

I was hired by the TITAN Corporation 24 a lingwist'wansiator an 1 October 2003 and
13 October 2003, This was my first assignment for TTTAN. Upon my
ho had responsibility for the linguists at Abu Ghraib.
3 waork schedule. Linguisi were ingmucted 10 checka ool _
inserrogations. If we had no scheduled interrogation we would be “on call™ to provids linguist suppon m the medics.
rovided me  brief enieniation of the facility and mission. He took me to see the wood xite intewogetion center and
ingruist SUppoOTT to screenings to familiarize myself with operations. 1 ramember reading and signing » stateznent thar
1 understood the "Intarrogation Rules of Engsgement (IROE)." Ibelizve it was a two document, not the onc page slide | was
shown in this interview, Other than being provided that document to review | received no additional insructon in
mtemogation procedures or proper bandling of detainees. Nobody elaborated on the IROE concerning what could or could not be
done. 1t was & "cheek the block” procedure with oo real explanation. | understood that you siuld not physically abuse or even touch
» detainge and it would clearly be abusive o beat, punch or kick a detainee. 1 was never briefed an use of hamiliation techniques or
dogs in interropations. 1 tbought the milinry intervogators would know what was right and wrong; I was anly there 1o provide
wanslation. | asked assiga me m the field as 2 sereener and was told | would be in » “tost period” fora fow weels
my abilities assignment. Within ope w0 two days of my arxival 1 was assigned w inssTogations on
ic) tea panicipated in just a few micrrogations while oo thisteam.  Present I -

He was » big man of Afncan decent. Within two waoeks 1 was i 0 g foreign fighter team
mg the night shifl. Alzo on thus texm were
ithin one to two weeks of joming this team (1 bebeve 17 of 18 Decemba
Ind | would be working on a special project and I had fifteen minutes to pack fors
' south of Basma via sircraft and helicopiet 1o 2 ship o pi “Project #2,” g3 alleged i
E 1 corted back to Abu Ghraib. detainees name was I'beli
. (Identfied in Photo #213). *m,ns:gmdn the prumary thieTro, theanalyst

with me providing canslation. We hatl oo other duties whilc working on "Project #2.” We inflfated mterroganions the eveniog of our

relwrn and conunued WIETOEAUEDS ximatzly once or twice a day. The imerrogations were normal and pothing sbusive was said
or dons to the aemnee%“ not use dogs. deprive the detunee of or order removal of his clothes. He.graanally
wicd 10 badriend the detainec 1t ust. While working o

I conducted translations of several docamens
caplured with this dewinee in berween the daily itterroganons. | my more detail the frequency or durstiso of
ihterropations but that sbould be documented i the detainee’s file. Included ia files were who interrogated s detainee and-how often.

After a week or Two of interregations, I'm not ceram, as reassigned. This resulted in an, “idle” period wheye I had
nothing 1o do other than contoued Oon. Abouta week of two m over as the imerrogatar
and we resumaed daleTogations. ida't conduct the interrogations y

yer abused the deminee. He never made hum remove clothing or cmen's yndeTwear on Most
tines, since W was cold, the deminee bad » blanket dunng interrogatons. ﬂ-y have ordered the detainees hair and .-
beard shaved. 1 pever heard him give this arder or heard hum bragging about domng s0 but he coramentad on the detainew’s bair one
day wod & few days loter the detainee was shaven, ever emmployed physical abuse. He never wuched the detainee
or used dogs w wicrogabons and 1 nover heard hi®f1cli any detainee thal dogs would be Ict Joose on him. The deminee once 10ld me
that dogs were used oo him and other detainees bui not specifically against hire. 1 believe it may have occurred duri ]
searches but wy not cermin, He dida't el me when or why, just that he was afruid of dogs. 1 do not remember i
was present when the detainee told me this but most likely he would have been. sornctimes cale the

o i the corner or it on the ground in the comer. Other thap sumding or siUME in the comer, 1 never observed
¢ swess positions on the demioee.  Dunag most interTogations the detunre gat in & chais, Ronmlyw
S

would compiain ¢f bemg tred and being made 1o stand for long penods while in his cell  His feet were swolles and on

1C. EXMIBIT 11. INITIALS P MAKING STATEMENT
S e o

ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING "STATEMENT TAKENAT ____ DATED .

THE BOTTOM OF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGE NUMBER
MUST BE BE INDICATED.
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9 STATEMENT (Continwed) .
occasion be asked 10 scs 8 doctor. 1 beticvdMINIIIMM«iccq » doctor what could be done for this detainee's pain.

: tinely and on &t least one occision did provide this detainee same MQW

crcful]ylwucnfm:pmccdurcundhowﬂmdcnmmmdoﬁzmm treated.

8 stams ofourdemnae lamcmmthcywmn
défainees status, condition and treatm vc ordered slecp deprivation as the detainee complained of
being tired but I have o kmowledge of this. hxmtcllﬁacmstogwcﬂlcdmnm " bad " Once ortwice I heard
him teli the MPs be would get spproval to adjust a detrinec's slcep pattern and on one occasion 1 sa i
paperwork which he told me was approval to yse sleep deprivation which he taking to the MPs,
always used paperwork to adjust or injtiate sleep dgpnvauuHu Do rougher than anyoac else with the
and was generally easy-going. Starting sometume in January, Wheo mortar attacks became more frequ

providing the detainee 3 flak vest interrogations. The day of the 24 November 2003 shootng incident ] was in the chow hall
waiting to go on shift at 2200 ho in and alerted everyone of a shooting. He then directed all Lingnists to

provide immediale assistance 10 the enswing interrogations. 1 worked sraight through until approximately 1445 the following day. -
There was lots of commotion and I did sec some of the de jthout clothing. 1 observed onc detrinee who was stripped and
taken upstairs to the shower room for interrogation b and YR believe but am not gertain that

wade him wear women's underwear. I heard the detainee crying "no.” I also saw them toss watey an the detainee,

did oot conduct any interrogations that day. Most interrogations occurred in the hallway between Tier A and Tier

seeing the MPs with dogs in the cells, There was too much confusion and I couldn't go through the cell block so [ am n upcermin what
they were being used for. 1 assume they were conducting searches. There were a few other occasions where 1 observed dogs being

used. Ome day {unrecalied) I saw the MPs szarching detainee cells with dogs. Another time in Vigilant, I saw the MPs
searching the detainee’s tents, They moved the detamnees to one side while they searched the ather, [ never observed dogs being used

to friphten de tz February or early March 2004 I was reassigned and worked with P
n a foreign fghter team. At this time I signed additional paperwork which I believe was an
e at I'm not certain. 1 remained on Wtﬂ my departure on 8 April 2004.

: Do you have anything else to add to this statemnent?
: Ne.
!llllllll/{lI/J/!//l////I////////.’////////////I///l////ﬂ//fl//l//END OF STATEMENT/ TR TN R T,

_______ —— ' A D -‘L:.ﬁ —w—’-_//

L PAPPAS, and others visited and

e

(’--.

- AFFIDAVIT
-HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINS ON PAGE 1, AND ENDS ON PAGE WULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

BY ME THE STATEMENT 113 TRUE. ) HAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE !NITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
~ CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. 1 HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION. UNLAWFUL INFILENCE, UNLAWFLE INDUCEMENT. .

{Signature of Person Makinp Stetement)

WITNESSES Subscribed and swom Lo belore me, a parson authorized by iaw to
agmunister oaths, tws __ 25 day of May . 2004
al_Alexandng, VA

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS noture of Person Administenng Oath}

(Typed Name ! !!Admimtmng Oath)

UCMJ, Artcle 136

ORGANIZATION DR ADDRESS {Authority To Administer Oaths)
INITIALS OF STATEMENT —:—
‘ PAGE . OF ) T PAGES
PAGE 3. DA FORM 2823, DEC 1598 URAPA V1,00
AGOOOOR0O0

DOD 000887






STATEMENT (Continued) /

AFFIDAVIT

. HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
GINS ON PAGE 1 AND ENDS ON PAGE LLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
BY ME THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. | HAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE 80TTOM OF EACH PAGE
| CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WiTHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT DR R
THREAT DF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, Lh AW UL ENEL

WITNESSES, Subacnbed and awom to before ma, & person suthonzed by law to
agmirister oaths, this _9th  day of June L18_04
st JIDC, BCCF

ORAGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

Bgruime of Fpekon Acnvnisrding ati

I {Typed Name of Person Administering Dath)

UCM!  Acbecie 3t

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS {Authority To Adminester Outhsi
INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT '
‘ : PAGE L. © © PAGES
UBAMYYT V1
AGO000801

DOD 000888






CITF7-TF Fay 20 June 2004

MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD

suBseCT: imerview oS

7B, Tactical Human Intelligence
ion, 525™ Military Intelligence

; A Company, 515 Military lntelligence
Brigade, Te.ephone Number: | W csidence:

a. Source armived in AG, Iraq in inte July 2003. His job for the first 10 days was to set up the
life support area and operations. The team’s mission was to interrogate detainees captured in s
Coalition raid searching for members of the Fedayeen Saddam. The initial interrogations were
largely unproductive. Coalition command kept pressing Source’s unit to produce intelligence
reporting. Source siated the vast'majority of the detainees were not knowledgeable and useless.

b. Source's command were extremely hands-on with interrogation operations
d\wujd frequentiy interrupt interrogations and provide input. Source IXc

Pappas professionally though Source acknowiedged Pappas probably had knowledge of abuse by
Other Government Ageacy (OGA) personne! through —-r_ )
c. The Interrogation Rules of Engagement (IROE) were well known by all interrogators on
Source’s team though Source does pot recall whether He signed an acknowledgment sistement to

that affect. All interrogations that took place once normal operations began were run on a strict. -

interrogation plan that was signed off by the chain of command. Source said originally, the
interrogation plans were signed by His team senior interrogator though He did not recall who
signed off on them 2t a higher level. The initial IROE did not have the approval sutharity
spelicd out though the subsequent IROE's were very specific; identifying approval authorities up
wﬂSame also stated the requests 1o change phases were not always granted and
that sieep depnivation and the interrogation schedules were always approved through His chain

of command. Source said the policies and procedures followed at AG were very similar to those
His unit followed while in Afghanistan. '

d. Source neither saw nor heard of the Military Police (MP) in charge of the detainees abusing
or mistreating the prisoners whilc He was there. Source stated the MPs did a cursory job of
enfarcing interrogation phases such as adjusted sleep and meal schedules. Source did not
remember any guard dogs present, used, or requested. Source frequently was presented with
nude or partially nude detainees, including some in female undergarments. When nsked why, the
MPs claimed they ran out of toen's underwear. Source also said some detainees in isolation calls
would voluntarily disrobe to their underwear due to the heat. When interrogations would take

AGQOODOBO2

DOD 000889



place, the detainees would get dressed. There was never any reason for them to be standing in
the hall naked.

e. Source wes on emergency leave in the US for 12 days over the Thanksgiving Holiday in
November 2003, Source departed AG in September 2003.

2. Source refused to execute 2 DA 2823 Swom Statement.

3. Point of Contact for this memorandum is the undersigned at Conn“
s

15-6 Investigating Officer

AGOO00803

DOD 000890






. . PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT
AUTHORITY: Tite 10 USC Section 301; Tiie § USC Section 2051; E.0. 5387 detad November 22, 1943 /SSA).
PRINCIPAL PURPOSE:  To provids commaenders and law snforcsmant officisls with means by which information mMay be sccuratsly dentied,
MOUTINE USES: Your sacisl security number ig sact 88 87 sdditional/aitamats means of ddentifioation 1o Taciktats thing and raineval.
DISCLOSVRE: Discinsure o1 your sockai security number is volumary.
1. LOCATION 2. DATE /YYYYMMD, . TiM 4. FILE NUMBER
Metro Park Springficld, VA 2004/0508 24¥| |00

E._LAST Fi NAME, MIDDLE NAME 6. SSN | I 7. GNADEIST&;’US

B. ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS - e
B Co, 141 Bn, 300th MI Bde, Utah National Guard Logan , Umah

I was assigned w Abu Ghraib (AG) from 1 Oet 03 unti) 6 Feb 04. 1 was attached w the 323d M1 Ba aad had dutics as the
Headquaners Support Company Commander. My rater was and my rater was COL Pappas. My duties consisted
exclusively of the "care and feeding™ for the Soldiers - administration, logistics, and life support for the M1 Soldiers assigned at
AG. ]had no involvemen! with the operau tide of the bouse. [ visiled the hard site and the wood sitz an only s couple of
oceasions; 1 had no official duties :

WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER DATH;

|1 8id hear sbout three soldiers receiving mfumumuwmmmmmmam-mmmw
before tmy arrival and 1 did not have direct knowledge of it. Near the ead of or the first part of Jasuary 04, I am
mzposiuventmenmbmkmwthtilcoincidedwimmccminvnﬁpn‘u. 0 me that he had secn some

unauthorized photos of detainess and was uncertin sbout reporting it, as be di not 0 get anyone in trovble. 1 mid him that
he bad to repon it to CID, which be did. Other than the matters above, 1 did not observe, hear of, or bave reported 1o me any
instance of humiliation, sbuse or malrcatment of detainees. 1 did oot see or hear of any unawthorizad photographs or videos.

Q: ls there anything you would like 10 2447 A: No.

mcmfm/mm/mmmum/m//Hmmmm/mﬂumsnd of Swaement! NIRRT LTI,

f\JO‘H’]rﬂq

S—aflows
-

. : .
I : _
T1. WITIALS OF PER G STATEMENT r
| — race 1or BF eaces

'ADDIT!DNAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING "STATEMENT TAKEN AT DATED

THE BOTTOM OF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE WNITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT. AND PAGE NUMBER
MUST BE BE INDICATED.

DA FORM 2823, DEC 1938 PA FORM 2813. JUL 72, IS DBSOLETE UBAPA V.00

AGO000BO4

DOD 000891



_STATEMENT {Continued|

Not

AFFIDAVIT

. HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINS ON PAGE 1. AND ENDS ON PAGE I FULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS TNUE. 1 HAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALEC THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE

CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARLD, WITHOUT

THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHQUT CCERCION, UNLAWFUL INFLUENCE, DR UNLAWFUL INDUCEMENT.

: I I !:'gmlmrz of !ﬂn !lkmp !ulmcnl

Subscribed and sworn to betore ms, a parson authorized by isw to
adrmimister onths, this __ 24 day of May 2004 '7..50_"{

WITNESSES

at B*E‘IEQ'\I—'QQE SERIRGEIEL DY YA

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS {Signsture of Parson Aoministaring Usth)

(Typad Name of Person Administering Osth)
UCMJ. ARTICLE 136
fAuthonty To Admmisier Oaths)

INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT m
y PAGE oF PAGE

‘PAGE 3, DA FORM 2823, DEC 1398

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

USAFA V.00

AG0000805
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From: —AJ DCS, G-2

Sent: Tuesday, Ju , 2004 12:33 PM
To: r HQ INSCOM
Subject: - S5PC Cruz

Here ls—lnfo for his file.

CPT CJTF7-CHIEF ADMIN LAW
DCS, G-2°

From:
To:
Sent: 4’30/2004
Subject:

1 have con:ac:ed_ civiliarn defense counsel, for —has stated
that n1s client wlll invoke nhis rignt ¢ remain silent. .

- 38 PM

w5

AGODO0OD806
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PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT

AUTHORITY: Title 10 USC Section 301; Titla 5 USC Section 2951; E.0, 9397 dated November 22, 1943 /[S5AN.

PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: To provide cormmaendars and law enforcement oHicials with means by which information may be accurately identilied.
ROUTINE USES: Your sorisl security number is used as an additional/aiternate means of identification 1o faclitate filing and retrevai.
DISCLOSURE: Disclosure of your social security number 1s valuntary.

1. LOCATION 2. DATE (YYYYMMD . TIME i 4. FILE NUMBER

METRO PART, SPRINGFIELD, VA 2004/05/19 § 1506

7. GRADE/STATUS

E. LAST NAME, FIRST NAME. MIDDLE NAME €. SSN _ 7
. - v

8. ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS -
4058 Lucas Ave Las Vegas, NV 89120

Y :
i WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH:

11 was hired by Titan in early October 03 1o wark as an Arabic language imerpreter/oanslator. T arrived at Abu Ghraib on 11 or
12 October and left on January 19, 04. lmmediately on arrival | was given a tour of the facility to include the inierrogation arcas,
dining and sleeping areas and given an orientation on how the interrogation center funclioned. I was informed of do's and don't in
handling detainees - specifically 10 translate exactly what was said, no physical or verbal abuse or bumiliation, to sit between the
detainee and interrogator. 1 was instructed 1o report immediately if I suw or became aware of any abuse or humiliation of
detainees. Hand gestures were allowed as pan of the interpreter process as that is a part of Arab culture. My initial assignment
was in screening for about 5 or 6 days and after they found that | was more capable, 1 was moved to interrogations. i
interrogated former iragi Intelligence Service personnet and General Officers who had previously worked with I
hever saw any physical abuse, shoving, hining or pushing of detainess. I did not observe any humiliation such as being stripped

and walked around naked or having 10 wear women's underwear. Most of i 1 were dope in the booth, in cells,
or upstairg room in the hard site. ”vsigncd me 10 work wi\%ﬂd&

m«m various occasions. Un one occasion as I was conducting crrogation 1 obscrved one of the dog¥being walked

ou ¢ area, back and forth but repeatedly bej in front of one particular cell. There was B detainee in the cell by

no interrogalors at the tne.  While interrogating i

the General was always kept in the hard site opin his cell | never saw any abuse of him. I interview
was being very cooperative with us and informed us a

oo a couple of occasions after the shooting.

among the detainees in AG. | worked with A on oric pccasion 1o interrogate a former Al Qaeda. The interrogator only
utroduced humself as being from OGA and the interrogation lasted about 5 hours. There werc no Army personnel present.
Duting the interrogation, the detainee was made 1o kneel and iold he could sit when he answered questions. ] did not sec any

abuse by the OGA nierrogator.

Q. Do you have anything eise to add 10 this starement”
A. No
SR LR S LT 111111 ERd of Stat:meuuHIII/HIIIHIIH/IHIIIHHHHHIIH/HIHIHHIHH/”

1o ExWiBIT . 11, INITIALS OF N MAKING 5TATEMENT _—
' | PAGE 1 OF FAGES

ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING “STATEMENT TAKEN AT DATED
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{Continued)

AFFIDAVIT
[ . HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH CN PAGE 1, AND ENDS

: ULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
BY ME THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. { HAVE INITIALER ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE IMITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE

CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT DR REWARD, WITHOUT
THREAT QF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COEBC!ON. UNLAVVFUL INFLUENC

T,

ISignature of Person ing Stataman

| WITNESSES: Subschbed and swom to betore me, a porson suthorizad by law to
somiruster osths, this_19th  day of MAY . 2004
at_Metro Park, Springfield, VA

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS {Signature of Persan Aoministenng Osth}

{Typad Name of Peison !!mnmsurmg Onxth}

UCMJ. ARTICLE 136
DRGANIZATION QR ADDRESS {fAuthority To Adminizster Qaths/
INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT z
: PAGE.32" OF 2. PAGES |
PAGE 3, DA FORM 2823, DEC 1998
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PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT .

AUTHORITY: Trite 10 USE Section 304 Titke 5 USC Section 2051; ED. 9387 daisd Novembar 22, 1843 (3547,

PRINCIPAL PURPOSE:  To provide commandars and laew enforcement oHicisfz with moans by which miormanon mey be aerpratrty igenntpd.
ROUTINE USES: Yaur socal seturily number i taad As an agdinonelisltensie mesns ol identilization 1o facidiiote fiiing wnc retneval.
DIBCLOSURE: Discloudsn of-yous soC sesunty number 15 voluntery,

1. LOCATION 2. DATT (YYYYAM. 3. TiME 4. FiLE KUMBER

94th RRC, Devens, MA Ele(iﬁfﬁﬁ 144 )

E MIDDLE NAME 6 SSN £7. GHADE/STATUS
- SGT/E-5

8. ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS
6th Baralion, 98th Division (MIIT), Devens, MA

1a.

. WANT TD MAXE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH:

ave been asked o provide further miormation o clanty satemens | made 30 mvestigator on 28 May 2004, reganlog twe
imezdents irvolving detainees @t Abu Gharraib (AG: Dacnbor Facilay, drag. As 1 previously staced, 1 wilnesses two midents. aad
reporied both those inasdenis 1 WY shpenisor, was pun of 3 Tiger Tuam frum Guintaano By {GTMO)
Facility with Uhe mussion w demily sysiemic problems g1 AG and recoumend gorreetions aml soluticas hased on the GTMO
experience. The GTHMO Tiper Tean cogsisted nd e Louder and MOS 351E)

S Munine Corps
CuuIvaIe WING yscH - ] winessed e fina sneident durips my frggmierropstion st AC an vardy Gt 05
asie of the wooded boothy anid | observed from hehmd the glass qas Wie Jead fierropstor, s ghere ity
an unalvsL, and dete was an nterpegies/ T ransianse (177 2 wlise mintie § cun'z necadi, hut he was known 10 e as the “Crabhy okl
bostand”. Tiurhing the imermoegation, hoid the detunee moll hik orange jumpsuit down w his waist and iasinaated tha dw

et winkt o siripresd urter iF e desanee did mit cooperate. Shordy 2fier dis happened  the Ine o o i s hamd,
looked away . e said il be was 009 comigrabie with the slaatin, and therr exinet the oo, SR } the
inlerrogason. | ivouph: the saatan b atention, ot g tespended with words 10 the ellecl t@’(‘
”a\‘:w v e was domg. Alwer v ahit, 1 met waih Tie olher memisess for our "duily ™ After Actson Review meeungs in
he Operalions sres Althuugh they were miended to be dialy . taey were not, i we did have oo this partiodor g, [ did sot
bring un the issue durmyg ti meehiny beegge ot in nlerogaer and | wasn't sare ow b handie reperting it 1 ibought i
waatd e best o hrigat U ennen and el him handle 0. Afler 2w meetmg, we drove bk 1o the Living
Suppost Area JUSAG MLk was gnd st o mine and oy were nexi (o the door. | asked him i he mui&
step aadtside with me veise 1 hasd something sensitive w el him, We borh sicpped o iodo the stairway (o the barmeds, anid ]
reparted G i whiat | bad seed, a8 1 hase silled above . Al the omie, the faen thae e interpreies walied wat tothered me Ieciuse
we had had protlems at GTMO with inerpreiers disrupting ancmmagalugs by attempring o dielaic the pice and metiod of
Lermspation approaches, so we tkked ai ; Lo reer e incident in generabor generic werms. | never usod the teom
“culioral difleremes, wad noither dd i spevineally wid hp oy had done and thal that was
the easnn why the Interproter walke dein’¢ pet much feedtack from uring this conversation, olher
$hat hie discused the mmatem with an Interprower weblany ow of an imerrogalfon,  He dic not ask elariiying guesions aboul SPC
vihing dewn Gie detanes s sl amld aever adidressed that aspedt of the incident specifically. Hie soid be would “wke

care of 17 Py i L woes 1o meant that e wintld reporn rat, e rofling of e jimansui and the ingerpreter watking out.

{malyst,
t toak place @

Essenitselly that "1 retered 1o the whale medent, i just the mierpraer, 1 never spoke aboul this
fmeitsmit aging, wn! b never provided any feadhoesi 1o 1o Us Lo Uie what fuppened. o what would happen as 3 result of the reporiy
As i menbonat in mv lirss statemuesit. fd come rack b me semehie later and asked why | had reporied the

crlerrogawss for waiking vur on the siemugaton. saving tha: the mierprewr was one of the beuer ones. However, he mever asked

or eonitromed mw anost why 1 bad reponed him rer dwe madent “I. iii 2nd incidont dlse peocwmed incarly Ot (B, W ocenrmed
someiime befene we were tricled un the new JROE tha iad signed, wheh, 1 have been mronaed, was daied 12
i 03 ) parucipuzed it what voulid have heen myv thinl o tounh witerrtiganen . 1 wiosdd tike 1 elirity a sutement | mads in my
28 May 2004 Sworn Sttemeze, when T atited that - we wetv aneniewan a deanee jor the first tme ™. To clarify, thix was Uy
st time thal 1 had purtespated us aomterrogabon with s detanec owever. © my dmowlcdge, had interrogaid
T PreVIOUsTY.  Abaul o hours mie Ui mterropalian. 1 beusme evidens m;i&-l‘as peuzng fnustraied with the
deliipes Perausy Be wWOsh's conTeerative amd Wiss nol wewering sucstions Aboait an hoor ¢ 45 minuecs inle (he imermeption. J
caned over toonz and asked i) hought we shuule pul e detainee i solitary. | sold him that | did not think it was
very effecuve gaeun and would herm any rappost with tie dezanee, hat that he was the iniermogator apa 1 was hus el Aboat 13

BUPRHLS St topred thBtemoeainn, denaned the Meoth, and reigrmed aboun five munutes faer with o MiRary
Pislteernon (MP: The MP wis cithes fhe &id rot wear ghassas). 1 was the same MF thit laer
WD 13 INITIALS ©F PERSU NG STATEMENT .

ADDITIONAL PALES MUST CONTRAIN THE HEADING "STATEMENT TaKEN AT OATED

THE B(ITTDM OF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST SEAK THE IMITIALS (F THE PERS (] MAKING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGE NUMBER
ANZET B BE INDICATED
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. EMENT (Continued) _ _
the Bard Site "1 want 1o thank you guys, because up until 8 week or two ago, 1 was a good Clnunln'—cml.m:d the
booth with the MP right on his heals. The MP jammed 2 bag over the detainee's head, grabbed the handcufTs restraining him, an;

said some thing like “come with me piggy” and he lead the detaines W solitary confmement m the Hard Site, it we did not follo
from the booth 10 the Hard Site. Someume between appmnmau:ii 1200 and 1300 bours and | went to unch and the

incident continued to bother me. half an hour s fand [ remmed to ite afier finishing tunch. As we
were finishing up hmch that be wanted 1o g0 se¢ olrr guy, referring Lo the detsinee in isolation. He did not say
why, and ] did not ask. We did not bave an interpreter with us, bt we did have the same iterpreter who had participated i the
carlier interTogation, and he was scheduled and available for us if we needed him. When we arrived at the dewainee's cell, we
found him tying oo the floor, completely naked except for 2 hood that covered his head from his upper lip, whimpering, but there
were 0o brutses or marks on him. The same MP who had escorted the detainee from the booth to the Hard Site met us at the cell
door. He suarted yelling at the detainee words to the effect “you've been moving litile piggy, you know you shouldn‘t move™ and
yanked the hood all the way back down over the detainee's bead. [ was by what | saw, and it to
: N%was 8s well. We instructed the MPs 10 clothe the detainee, which they did. 1 quickly whispered

1

an
ew the MPs were going 10 sirip the detainee, and he said that he did not know. | didn't even think to ask the MPs why
they had done it. The MP made the statement & thank you guys, because up umtil 3 week Or Iwo ago, 1 was a good
Christian”. Afier the deliiner was clothed,| and ] escorted him 10 the general population and released him without
interrogating him again. | never saw this delainee agamn. The “striping incident” or tbe isolation techniqu.e were pever reported mr
any "interroga * or "interrogation plan” o my knowledge. After dropping off the detainee in general population, | parted
way Mmmud went back 1o work at the JDIC Ops area to catch up on work. [ remember m 108 le
other people out of distress, but 1 can not recal] with cenaifity who those indivi 1 rried wo fm vhnl
report what [ had seen, but [ could not locatc him. 1 did think about telik I don't know t her ute was or
lhcr role, bt 1 know she was an officer in charge of something atthe JDIC. However, nét knowing ber specific role and due 1o

previous encounters with ber where she did pot appear responsive 10 my requests and questions, | did not fee! she was the nght
person 1o tell, } was thinking that because the incident invoived the MPs and a not GTMO M1 soldier, that such a report from the
GTMO 1eam should come from the GTMO i idn’t wan! (0 supercede my chain of command. After we renrned 14
the LSA later in the evening, I again pulied the side to speak with him in private in the LSA courtyard. [
began the conversatiop with a general diatn s|performance, technigues, preparation skills, and commitment.
1 then relaled 1o hito the incident 1n the Hard Site earlier in the day and he responded "that's not right”, "that's a problem”, or
words 10 that effect. Hc then stated "1'l) talk 10 COL PAPPAS about it™. 1 don't believe COL PAPPAS was at AG at the time
and 1 don'1 think he gyrived until about three days after this. This conversation did take place at the end of a long, tiring day, md
as sick at the time, In fact, a shon time later he received “quarters® and was sick for abowt a month,
However, regardless of his state of mind, there was no doul m my mind at the time that he understood what 1 had reporting to
him and that e had said he would talk 1o COL PAPPAS by name. | never discussed the incident further wil
or COL PAPPAS, or anyone else. ] never heard any feedback and e MP: néVer Mentioned
anytung to me. [n response to the invesugating officer’'s question regarding i was aware if any of his
15 had responded 1o Nov 03 shooung incident at the Hard siie, the following.
d myself returned 1o the LSA on the second day of responding 10 the shooting incidem. We up an
of.time and | collapsed op my cot, } was so tred | did oGt remove any of my gear, inclgdl i ilimeter.

de e comment, "Why" 7"
. "We've boen ‘ discussi ying
Uon and was soon asleep. | have pothing funber w add w this statem TR T

AN HHTTIFEND OF STATEMENTH TR TR D

— —— -
— |
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8. STATEMENT [Continued) : : | p

AFFIDAVIT :
-_‘_ﬂ, HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINS DN PAGE 1, AND ENDS ON PAGE . Y UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

BY ME  THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. [ HAVE lNlTlALE'D--ALg_ CORARECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD. WITHOUT
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWFUL INFLUENCEAOR A

Subsenbed and sworn 1o belors e, & person euthorized by law 1o
admimustar oaths, this _ 5th  day of June , 2004
st Devens

4 ORGANIZIATION OR ADDRESS ture of Person Administening Oath)

{Typed Nurme of Person Admwrigiening Gathit

5U.S.C. 303
DRGANIZATION OR ADDRESS fAuthormty Te Adminisier Oaths)
INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEM ' m_
FAGE OF
NaRE e A AR ASR RFS aRhe 1mAPL VY AN
AGO0D0B11

DOD 000898






: PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT
AUTHORITY: Title 10 USC Suction 301; Tite 5 USC Section 205 1; £.Q. 5307 duted Novernber 22, 1542 (S5N).

PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: To provide commanders and taw enforcement oHicials with means by which informat:on may bs sccurataly dentifnd.
ROUTINE USES: Your aocial security number 13 ussd as an sdditional/shemsie means of identification 10 faciiitate filing and retrieval
DISCLOSUHRE: Disclosure of your sacisl kecunity number 1s voluniary.

1. LOCATION 2. DATE (YYYYMMD, 3. TIME g 4. FILE NUMBER
94th RRC. Devens, MA (I j zowosrz{:u rgls‘;!

6. LAST NAME, FIRST NAME, MIDDLE NAME 6. SSN 7. GRADE/STATUS
. SGT/E-5

8. ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS
6th Batalion, 98th Division (TT), Ayers, MA

9.

F , WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH:
ReITenly a Sergeant assigned to the 6tb Baualion (BN), 98th Division (Instimtional Training), Ayer, MA, s an lnldhgm;%
y

Analyst (MOS 96B). 1 graduated from the Intelligence Center and School, Fort Huachuca, AZ, and was granted MOS 9%6B m
02. 1 remmed to my reserve unit 1o serve as an Insrucior/Trainer, but was home only abon a monib when | vohumnieered for dut
3t the Detention Facility at Guantanamo Bay (GTMO), Cuba. | returned 1o Huachuca 03 via the Readiness Processing Center 8t
Fort Benning and anended a three to four week ~Tiger Team Course™ intended for 96Bs deploying w GTMO. The course provi
a brief overview of interrogation operations and principles, a brief discussion of approved interrogation approaches, procedures
for coordinating information acquired from interrogations, how to work hand and hand with interrogators, and a brief discussion
of the Geneve Canventiop, but there were po practical interrogalion exercises, ‘for the analyst portion of the traming. ] then
deployed 10 GTMO on 14 Feb, and remained there until early Oct 03. While st GTMO, 1 worked closcly with interrogalors angd
had some first hand knowledge of interrogation procedures and techniquas. In early Oct 03, | was sent as part of a Tiger Team tw
Abu Ghraib (AG) in ireqg. MG MILLER the GTMO Commander, had just retarned to GTMO from a week-lang assisumce visit
al AG, because it looked, siatistically speaking, thal there was littie information coming owt of AG. 1 was part of the foliow-on

team with the mission 0 idenify systemic problems at AG and mmend corrections and soluticns based on the 0
experi ) O Tiper Team consisted o eam Leader and MOS 331E

- W (96B), US Marine Corps
o $6B), and myself. We arrived at via BIAPin 1 03 (I can not recall the exact date remained at AG unlil

approximately 16 Dec 03. We were greeted at AG b us
ammunition for our YMM pistols since we did not have any, and we were . COL PAPPAS was &t AG
j . The entire GTMO team

quite frequently, but ! didn’t have much contact with him. | did

with the exceplion of ) who was busy with] bricfed WM

of the 319k MI BN. iefed the general operalions al AG, the history of AG, and presented her slide $ia

the Intelligence Rules of Engagement (IROE), of which she was quitc proud. From & "professional interrogator perspective”, |

did not see anything terribly alarming, and assumed that so “rough and ramhile” techniques beyand those listed in

FM 34-52 (those listed on the righi-hand column of - were occasionally approved because [raq was a war

zome, ad GTMO was more of a garriscn environument. Because | was the jmior GTMO team member (T was a Specialist at the

ume) and becawse | did not want 10 come % bong 3 "know 1t all” from GTMO, 1 did not really question the advanced
techniques listed on the slide. id voice hus concern over one of the excepliona] techniques listed on the right-hapd

| side of the shide, but ded that these iechniques were, when approved, used at AG an that such tochniques were

un w". | was assigned to ore of the preexisiipe "Former Regime Loyalists™ section tnterrogadon Tiger Teams.
E) was the weam leader and was the interrogator and | was 1o provide analyst support
observe how the Tiger team concept was workang al AG. In late Nov 03, 1 was moved from the FRL section and worked wi

the GTMO detachment where ) worked on Analyst Support Packages, and ) continued in this capacity until } departed AG oo 12
Dec 03. From my armival at AG in early Oct 03 1o late Nov 03, 1 logged in approximately fifty-seven mnterrogation booth hours.
The first mierrogation an whigh T participawed was in early Oct O 1ok place i one of the wooded booths and T pheerved from
behind the glass. was the lead interrogator, as there as an analyst, and there was an Interpreter/ J
Translawor (I/T) whase name | can't recall. He was imown 10 me 2 The “crabby old bastard™, and was an ¢lderly *middie eastern
map with 2 horse-shoe balding patiern, long white harr, squat and compact, had a poc-marked posc (most potable faciad feature),

and always wore full Desent Combat Uniforms (DCUs). Although ow team was concentrated on Former Regime Loyalists, this
detaines 1n this 1 2 "force protecuon” detainee who was supposedly involved in 2 morar anack oo AG. This was
the attack i whi as injured, and it concerned me that he was going o pa.ruc‘ignu tn the interrogation of the vcr&
detamee who was suspected of mjurmg him. When ] reabized this, | asked him night before the

\errogats gan if he was O
with this and he said he didn't have & problem with it and continued 11 the interrogation booth, i bad the detainee roll

10, EXHIBIT ¢ 1l PERSCON MAKING STATEMENT | ﬁ—
: | PAGE 1 OF FAGES

ADDAITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE MEADING "STATEMENT TAKEN AT _____ DATED

THE BOTTOM OF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAB THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAXING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGE NUMBER
MUST BE BE INDICATED.
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crvrovioror NI o s 40 RRC, D, v 200 SRy

0. SIATEMENT foniimsnd) _‘_ . ._7 _
his orange jmapsail down u his waist and insmwite] thin, he wirikd be srippes] further if e detinee did pol cooperaw. The
interrapation ¢nded rativer guickly when the UT ohiecied n the ctic and refused 10 continue with the iniermugstion, The wetic

xeemed Lo he v the edge and 1 repored the agident, both the rotling down of the krmpsuit and the Gacpthas e 17T had walked
oul un e interrogation, Hnd he said be would ke care of iU, 1 asket bant it and he responded
i

thas it was an eperationaliy cllec{lve techinique hersuse that paniaitlar Jetainee was 2 case th ) “heen trving Lo hreak
for awhile. 1 pever discussed the nicident wath broughi it 6 utiention that such weatment woutd likehy
pegale mmy progress that might have been with Eht detainee dhus far, it she respopsitesd with words 1o the efter t
ﬁ;{m what he was deing. i ame back \0 me sometime taer asd asied why 1 had reponed dwe T for _
Walkilg Gut o G nlerregion, SN Aan Sie 1T was one of e hene ozes, However, he never asked or confrunted me ahout:

why 1 Bad reported in for the maadent. Al in garly Oct 03, | pamticigted in what would have boen my third or tomk
merropetiogg We wore mterviewing o deainee for the Vi tme: though (his was noj a screcaing of KB mierview and _
m- Kead ane if § thought we showld plice ose of ihe deLinees in solisry confinement for a few howrs B the middle ol e
ncTeekion. 1 wld him that 1 did nos think it was o very effective Wetic and would harm any rpport with the detainee, bl that |
Be was the interrofator and it was hes call, cided d place te detrine: in solitary and m MP came o the both o
exoon b 10 Coll Block 1A, The MP & & mag ovor bis head, grabbed the hudouf(s retraming the detmnee, and skl s -
inge like “gome with me pippy” and he dead the dewioee o solilary,  We went 4o Junch andthe incident. corinued w0 hother me.
Freturmed 10 LA sfier kmeh fwe Jid not have en 1T wills ogi and emtered the detainee’s eell. We tound hm lving
PO, conprteiely ik exeept iura hood it covered fus head from his upper lip, whimpering, i there were o bruises
ne marks an him ) was Gmply uaprepared and horrificd s what | saw. We iastrueted the MPs to clothe the detainer, whith they
did. Jq }:cdml’ he knew the MPs were poing us sirip the dewinee, and he said 1nat he did not know, Al eould think
showat was he SUFGus the inciden was. | didn't even think 10 ask the MPs why they hadl done . The MP mede the sunensent
°F want 10 thank vou guys, heesuse up until 2 week or two ape, 1 was o good Chrstian”™. The ststement was atmost "TV-like”
perhuanps witered iy thzalrie offect, and | am mo sure what the MP meant by it From digita] photographs shown o me this day, |
haifeve the MI* way eftdie Bowhs look very simikar amd T ondy saw the MP one Hie, 56 1 can nod say
wilh cenainly which one i T 30 ns wear glasses. Afiee the detninee was chothed, we escogted hig 1o the goneral
popatutits and release hine withowt mwrrogatme hun sgain. The “stniping incidenmt™ was never seported inany " muerrQgeior
sotes” or Tanerrogation Phnt G my kiowlodge  Thiv was ot uncommen, und the general leck-of ingrropation notes wus one-of]
the GTMO Tiger Tearn findmgs. 1 reponed thes inciden! b d he said tha he would report the incident to
COL PAPPAS Sergeime in mid=Oct £93. 1 had miy fimat expersenee i she hard sne.
[and | were eseoning a dedanee from e ceotrat paddock wud transtermiag gm o soliry cophineruent. 1o aot know s
O CIRCRESANCES SINCYe micrropaors tade sueh deciyyon *‘4 Mititary Policeman {MP) oa duty at the hard site,
mel us o the door 1o 12l Bieek LA, snlnte o Cdridl sergeant intimidation” role. hellowing o he-dewines (the
detaine: kel didn s snderstam] am anyway;. did ng abserve any atse or anytidig o of tie ordinary f wny of the aney |
ol e hard siie that T odserved on that visit, d e pemnve tie detaines's clothes,  During cne inwrnogation, o
o walked unesconed aod wimnestraited (R e arbes wire puddock badding arcy in the centryl AG vowrryard w the
interroeaticn Thu strech oo as strange . sinee s GTMO all dethiiness moving e milerrogations would be restrained and vseorted,
Tius wirs the frea inermegatinn Junng whizh the Jetunes could see me. Prios o thus, and at all intermaganioas su GTMO, T had
aiwatys been ot plass. I ke Now 63 dhere wan s shoeoung ineident in the biond sie. A about 175) houens
callvd o meviing s e diching 2aciity, cxplaned et oves the post dew doys drers Sd beon some things browgR intn AG wnd ¥
had Suimitated oo shooting weident ar the bard site. He psked fee volunieers o go down 10 the bard sife. 1 velumecercd along
there were i pumber af otiters b 1 do aot roead: thetr
R . rrammsen our nattle sutte 2ad weupoms and arvved o Une hand sowe abow 3 hal{ hour afer e aous! shootine. Thae
was wn MP canunn and seversl MPy airaidy on the scene and o gioop of several Ireyi Police (BPs), The 1P were lined up asd
weye wkea o By one Lo be scarcheid and guestionsd ahoat her possibe nveivement. The detziness were a1} serured in twir

cells My e agiility was st pusnd the [Hssand ranspon then from the bolding acce W be scarch. S :
serpesearehed and two ware Ielonlv in their uaderwear and held in e haltveay, domeene a the sie sak vas i
charpe of dinevuing the interrogatons, Bmogh [ did ot see Jim conduet one pensonally. | saw gne wierroggaon 1o G hallway,

but

bt was comueentrald on waiching e [P, so 1 did noi see ipuch o) what eise was eccwming. Taere were working d st
hut | i sec, for hear of, working dogs bemg used o any mierrogauons. | beard the next day tha i the

171 wory wirkang wopather, fan b did nol see them i ekt | akso found aul dxe next day i d heer tilien by
one b the dops, | sayed throughou the night and finaliv depened ot about dawn . 1 heand aboin e inoiden: where o deunoce

supposed]y died of conpemat henyt proablems duning an OGA muemogmion at AG, it | did not helieve ionul | saw i g the
news, ahoul fvur ponths afler my releas: (ron active duty | adso licard shout an inciden: thi 1avolve ralking 2
naked oriines out of an inteTrogation, hue b de not have any (st hand knowledpe of the meident. We nev g Or
mikeduess as & echnigae at GTMO, nor did nve use nilitery workaep dops We oover advised any persinpel an AG 1w iibize any
o s technugues. Sleep deprivition am! mspagement hud been discomiminad much earlicr duan the GTMO datachmen visit o
AG Trere was one necasion 1 which my AG Tiger Team royoested tha a Gaainee be pinced on Sleep manspement B my
welachment hud deparied AG befere the reguest was processed wod | am noy poersomatiy sware i) any sleep management being
cmpheyed 51 AG. | never gave otour ol AG facthues I ancommny renonnci, amd, e the best of my knowledpe, no oge from u
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P. gTEMENT {Cortirued) i
GTMO Team ever gave such a tour. While a1 AG, I never saw, nor heard of, any unsthorized phowgraphs or videos of
detainees. | saw, nor heard of, any working dogs being used in the course of interrogation o iois, Other than the mcidents
described above, ] am umaware of any detamee ghuse. In early Dec 03, the original O Tig
sat down 1o do a final assessment of AG interrogation operetions. We had come i

made endations (o the AG Comumand, but this was the final gdi 0n: cventually bnief

also briefed the AG Command before deparung AG. O Pt
meeung #nd was knowledgeabie of the findings and recommaoudations. meeting, we discussed the incidents types like

During
the ones described above ; how they should be avoided and other recammendations but did not make reference 1o specific cvents.
I was ordered by MG Fay this day not to discuss the inguiry or, m it with &n other than officials I imow 10 be involved
. 1 have nothing further 10 add 1o this slatem I R T

with the inquiry
mmmmummm/m/mm/mmmmummmeW ENTH I U

AFFIDAVIT
; . HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINS ON PAGE 1, AND ENDS ON PAGE 3 ULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

BY ME. " THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. | HAVE INITIALED ALL TORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT
& )

THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COEACION, UNLASFUL INFLUENCE . 0K UNE 2

Sopnaire of Poaxpp Makida Statement)

Subscribad and sworm to betore e, s person suthorized by iaw to

WITNLGSES
sdmiruster osths, this _2Bth  day of May . 2004

a1 dih Rersns! Readiness (Command, Devens. MA

{Sipnature of Parson Administering Dsth)

L

{Typed Neme of Paraon Administersng Oath)

5U.5.C. 303
{Authority To Administer Osths|
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JTF GTMO - SJA 15 March 2003

MEMORANDUM FOR: MG Miller, Commander JTF GTMO,

Guantanamg Bay, Cuba
SUBJECT: ICRC Meehng, 14 March 2003 '

Guantanamo), Brigadier Genenl P
(IDOG Comm ommander), L

onel MoQueen
Corps), LCDR ech Eelegat
M.D, C Delcgate ega:e) and LCDR
enord ).

began at 1645,

DOD 000902



29. The meeting adjourned at 1732. |

30. The point of contact for these minutes is LCD
5049. '

uTelephone_ 5160 or

ADOLPH McQUEEN
COL, USA
Commanding

DOD 000903



JTF GTMO- SJA 24 June 2003

. MEMORANDUM FOR: MG Miller, Commander JTF GTMO, Guantanamo Bay, Cuba . -
SUBJECT: ICRC Meeting, 19 June 2003

1. On 19 June 2003, JTF Guantanamo personnel and representatives of the ICRC met,

Attending fmm 2 ITF were MG Miller, BG Payne, COL McQu CAPT Shimkus,
LNI(A (recorder). .
. m C attended, meeting began

DOD 000904



21. The meeting adjourned at 1516.

Staff Judge Advocate

I

DOD 000905



